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EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED
CIN: L32300MH2004PLC145995

Registered Office: F/12, Ground Floor, Sangam Arcade, Vallabhbhai Road,
Vile Parle (West), Mumbai 400 056

Phone: +91-22-4036 4036; Fax: +91-22-4036 4037;
E-mail: info@euromultivision.com; Website: www.euromultivision.com

NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 18th (Eighteenth) Annual General Meeting of the members of Euro Multivision 
Limited will be held on Thursday, the 29th day of September, 2022 at 10:00 A.M. through video Conferencing (‘VC’) 
facility or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 
2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hitesh Shah (DIN: 00043059), Whole-time Director of the Company, who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.	 Approval of Related Party Transaction.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendations and approvals of the Audit Committee and the Board 
of Directors of the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended and any other applicable laws (for the time being in 
force), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to continue/enter into related 
party transactions for loan taken/to be taken from the director of the Company as per the details mentioned herein 
below:

Name of the Related Party Nature of 
transactions

Approximate Value of Transaction 
(Amount in Rs.)

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole-Time Director

Loan to 
Company

Not exceeding 
10,00,00,000/-

Not exceeding 
12,00,00,000/-

Not exceeding 
15,00,00,000/-

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby, authorized to do or 
cause to be done all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required to carry on the purpose of the 
aforesaid resolution”.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Euro Multivision Limited

	 Hitesh Shah
Place: Mumbai	 Chairman & Whole Time Director
Date: 10th August, 2022	 DIN: 00043059
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NOTES:

1.	 In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General 
Circular dated May 05, 2022 read together with relevant Circulars issued by MCA (collectively referred to as 
“MCA Circulars”) and Circular dated May 13, 2022 wherein the Companies are permitted to hold the Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), without the 
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), MCA Circulars read with relevant Circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
("SEBI"), the 18th AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. Hence, members can participate in the 
AGM through VC/OAVM only. 

	 The detailed procedure for participating in the meeting through VC/OAVM is annexed herewith (Refer Point no. 
‘B’) and the same is also available on the Company's website www.euromultivision.com.

2.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time) and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI the Company is pleased to provide facility of 
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 18th AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating 
voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member 
using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

3.	 The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 in respect of special business is annexed hereto and forms 
part of this notice.

4.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at 
the /AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This 
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the 
/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

5.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.	 Members holding shares in physical mode are required to submit their Permanent Account Number (PAN) to 
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz. Link Intime India Private Limited, C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083, as mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for every 
participants in securities market.

	 Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to submit their PAN to their respective DPs with whom 
they are maintaining their demat accounts, as mandated by the SEBI for every participants in securities market.

7.	 Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank 
mandates to their DPs with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company/Registrar 
& Transfer Agent M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited quoting their Folio Number and Bank Account Details 
along with self-attested documentary proofs.

8.	 M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner. 

	 The Scrutinizer shall, not later than two working days from the conclusion of AGM, make a consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, and submit it to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing. 
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	 The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
euromultivision.com and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.com immediately after the result is declared. 
The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE 
Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. 

9.	 Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members 
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available 
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

10.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling 
the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.euromultivision.com. The Notice can also 
be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The Notice of 18th AGM is also disseminated 
on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM/) 
i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

11.	 Corporate Members (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a duly certified scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution /Authorization etc., authorizing its representative 
to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting, pursuant to Section 113 
of the Act. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email 
address to scrutinizer@mgconsulting.in with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

12.	 Brief resume of Director proposed to be re-appointed /re-appointed at the ensuing AGM in terms of Regulation 
36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) is annexed to the Notice forming part of this Annual Report. The Company 
is in receipt of relevant disclosures/consents from the Director pertaining to his; appointment/re-appointment.

13.	 To comply with the provisions of Section 88 of the Act, read with the Rule 3 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company shall be required to update its database by incorporating some 
additional details of its members.

	 Members who have not registered their email addresses with the Company are therefore requested to kindly 
submit their e-mail ID and other details vide the e-mail updation form annexed with this Annual Report. The same 
could be done by filling up and signing at the appropriate place in the said form and sending it by an email to rnt.
helpdesk@linkintime.co.in and info@euromultivision.com.

	 The e-mail ID provided shall be updated subject to successful verification of their signatures as per records 
available with the RTA of the Company

14.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholdings, as maintained under Section 
170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested as maintained under Section 
189 of the Act, and all documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode 
during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection by the 
members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. Thursday, 29th September, 2022.

15.	 Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company's RTA, immediately of any change in 
their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, their bank account maintained in India with 
complete name, branch, account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code, IFSC and MICR 
Code, as applicable if such details were not furnished earlier.

16.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

17.	 The e-voting facility is available at the link www.evotingindia.com.

http://www.euromultivision.com
http://www.euromultivision.com
http://www.evotingindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
mailto:info@euromultivision.com
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THE INTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING AND REMOTE E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

(i)	 The voting period begins on Monday, 26th September, 2022 at 9.00 AM and ends on Wednesday, 28th September, 
2022 at 5.00 PM. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 22nd September, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii)	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 
venue.

(iii)	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020, under Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required 
to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it 
has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 
negligible level. 

	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. 
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders. 

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided 
to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv)	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

	 Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Users of who have opted for CDSL’s Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URLs for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New 
System Myeasi. 

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting Menu. On 
clicking the e-voting menu, the user will be able to see his/her holdings along with links of 
the respective e-Voting service provider i.e. CDSL/ NSDL/ KARVY/ LINK INTIME as per 
information provided by Issuer / Company. Additionally, we are providing links to e-Voting 
Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ site directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at  https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/ EasiRegistration

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a link in  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/
http://www.cdslindia.com
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Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL

1.	 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website 
of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services 
is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. 
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2.	 If the user is not   registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, 
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After successful login, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider’s website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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(v)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders & 
physical shareholders.

	 1)	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

	 2)	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

	 3)	 Now enter your User ID 

		  a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

		  b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

		  c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

	 4)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

	 5)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

	 6)	 If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 

both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank 
Details OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii)	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used 
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii)	For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

(ix)	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant <EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.

(x)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii)	 After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii)	Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv)	You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

http://www.evotingindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com
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(xv)	 If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi)	There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer 
for verification.

(xvii)	Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only.

•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log 
on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

•	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 
the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

•	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; info@euromultivision.com, if they have voted 
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/ THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for Remote e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast seven (7) days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (info@euromultivision.com). The shareholders 
who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance seven (7) days 
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at info@
euromultivision.com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/ through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 

http://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:info@euromultivision.com
mailto:info@euromultivision.com
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on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system available during the /AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the /AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED 
IN THIS NOTICE: 

1.	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to Company (info@euromultivision.com)/RTA email id (rnt.
helpdesk@linkintime.co.in).

2.	 For Demat shareholders- Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP) 

3.	 For Individual Demat shareholders– Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository 

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi,  
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or call at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 3 OF THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE

In view of the nature of business and to meet the working capital requirements, the Company avails loan from Mr. 
Hitesh Shah, Chairman & Whole-time Director of the Company on a regular basis. 

Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman & Whole-time Director of the Company is a related party pursuant to the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, applicable provisions of Accounting Standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. (‘Listing Regulations’).

Currently, the Company is not carrying any profitable business and the turnover of the Company is less since quite 
some years. The Company obtains loan for making the payment of day to day administrative expenses. Hence, all 
transactions of the Company with its related parties are material in nature, per se, require approval of the unrelated 
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting by an Ordinary Resolution.

The brief details of the related party transaction are mentioned hereunder:

(1)	 Name of the Related Party:	 : Mr. Hitesh Shah

(2) 	 Nature of Relationship:	 : Chairman & Whole time Director

(3) 	 Nature, material terms, monetary value and	 : Loan given to the Company.
	 particulars of the contract or arrangement: 

(4)	 Monetary Value:

Name of the Related Party Nature of 
transactions

Approximate Value of Transaction
(Amount in Rs.)

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole-Time Director

Loan to 
Company

Not exceeding 
10,00,00,000/-

Not exceeding 
12,00,00,000/-

Not exceeding 
15,00,00,000/-

The above proposal was approved by the Audit Committee and is recommended by the Board of Directors to the 
unrelated shareholders of the Company for their approval.

As per provisions of Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations, all entities falling under the definition of related parties shall 
abstain from voting irrespective of whether the entity is a party to the particular transaction or not. Accordingly, all 
related parties of the Company will not vote on this resolution.

Except Mr. Hitesh Shah, no other director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in this resolution. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of 
the Notice of 18th AGM of the Company for member’s approval.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Euro Multivision Limited

	 Hitesh Shah
Place: Mumbai	 Chairman & Whole Time Director
Date: 10th August, 2022	 DIN: 00043059
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In pursuance of the Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India (ICSI) details of Director seeking re-appointment at the 18th Annual General Meeting are as follows:

Name Mr. Hitesh Shah
Designation Chairman & Whole-time Director

DIN 00043059

Date of Birth/ Age 10th April, 1978 (44 years)

Nationality Indian

Date of first appointment on the Board 18th July, 2016

Qualifications HSC

Expertise and Experience in functional area He has vast experience in Finance and Budgeting

Number of shares held in the Company 2,96,634 equity shares

List of Directorships held in various other Companies Nil

List of Chairman/Membership of various Committees held in public 
Companies

Chairman: NIL
Membership: 
Euro Multivision Limited:
Audit Committee;
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee.

Relationship with existing Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the company

Not Related

Number of Board Meetings attended during the financial year 2021-22 05 (Five)

Terms and Conditions of appointment or re-appointment and 
remuneration sought to be paid or last drawn

There is no change in terms & conditions for 
appointment including remuneration.

Remuneration sought to be paid Nil

Remuneration last drawn Nil
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BOARD’S REPORT
To
The Members,
Euro Multivision Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Eighteenth (18th) Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

		  (Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars For the Year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the Year ended 
31st March, 2021

1 Total Revenue (Net) 38.27 98.69

2 Profit before Depreciation & Amortization Expenses, Finance 
Cost and Tax

(36.59) (14.69)

3 Less : Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1202.19 1380.96

  Finance Cost 0.09 0.76

4 Profit / (Loss) before Tax (1,238.86) (1,396.41)

5 Less: Tax (12.75) 12.42

6 Profit / (Loss) after Tax (1,226.13) (1,408.84)

7 Other Comprehensive Income - -

8 Balance of Profit/ (Loss) as per last Balance Sheet (1,226.12) (1,408.84)

9 Balance Available for Appropriation (1,226.12) (1,408.84)

10 Bonus Shares issued - -

11 Rate of Paid Dividend - -

12 Dividend paid - -

13 Tax on Dividend - -

14 Transfer to General Reserve - -

15 Balance of Profit/ (Loss) carried to Balance Sheet (1,226.12) (1,408.84)

FINANCIAL REVIEW:

The total revenue (net) of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022, decreased by 61.22% and stood at INR 
38.27 Lakhs as against INR 98.69 Lakhs in the previous year. During the year, the Company has incurred loss of INR 
1,226.12 Lakhs as against loss of INR 1,408.84 Lakhs in the previous year. The Company has not provided for interest 
on financing facilities from secured lenders-banks which is yet subject to confirmation and / or settlement, amounting 
to INR 2,547.97 Lakhs, for the year ended 31st March 2022. Had the same been accounted for; the net loss (after tax), 
would have been increased by INR 9,767.65 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022. Hence, the resultant turnover 
and income for the year under review was lower than that expected by the management.

COVID-19:

The year under review commenced with nationwide lockdown due to the COVID-19 pandemic. This has impacted 
the global economy including the domestic economy. During such challenging times, the Company took an approach 
of empathy, support and innovativeness to engage with its employee. The Company also took various measures 
to ensure the safety and wellbeing of all employees and was ensuring compliance with the directives issued by the 
Central Government, State Governments and local administration from time to time in this regard.
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The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Optical Discs and Solar Photovoltaic Cells. 

The Company is trying to recover from the impact of Covid-19 pandemic and continued lockdowns and the revenue 
of the Company has decreased as compared to previous year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

During the financial year under review, no amount was transferred to Reserve.

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

The Company operates in two segments i.e. Opticals Disc and Solar Photovoltaic Cells. Make in India’s campaign, 
has formed an ideal base for India’s manufacturing segment, but for sustainable growth, India needs to accommodate 
best prevailing practices followed by established manufacturing countries across the world.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

The performance during the year was not satisfactory due to various reasons beyond the control of the Management. 
The COVID-19’s impact on our lives and economy has been earth shattering. The lockdowns and restrictions have 
sent the global supply chain in disarray and have halted industrial growth and have brought to the fore the importance 
of building domestic manufacturing facilities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS:

India today stands among the top five countries in the world in terms of renewable energy capacity, thus your Company 
projects potential in the future. To catch up with the growing opportunities in the Solar PV Sector the challenge before 
your Company is to reduce the per unit cost. Hence, there is a continuous need to innovate to increase efficiencies 
and bring down costs. As the industry being such that the technology and product efficiency upgradation is at the 
faster pace, your Company needs to be at par with international standards for product quality in order to remain 
competitive in the Market.

On 30th July 2018, going by the recommendations of the Director General of Trade Remedies, the Union Ministry of 
Finance imposed a 25 per cent Safeguard Duty (SGD) on the imports of solar cells/modules for two years. Moreover, 
this was lowered in a phased manner. While the duty was 25 per cent for a year, it was 20 per cent for the next six 
months and for the remaining tenure ending July 2020 it stood at 15 per cent. The import levy was meant to protect 
local manufacturers from the losses inflicted by cheap, substandard imports.

There is an urgent need therefore, for India to devise a policy framework aimed at creating a diversified domestic 
manufacturing industry for solar industry as well as ancillary products that could significantly reduce its import 
dependence, ensure a self-sufficient, sustainable and affordable energy access and generate greater employment 
opportunities.

SHARE CAPITAL:

There was no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the year 2021-22. The paid up equity share capital 
of your Company as on 31st March, 2022 is Rs. 23,80,00,490/- (Rupees Twenty-Three Crore Eighty Lakhs Four 
Hundred Ninety only) divided into 2,38,00,049 Equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupee Ten only) each.

LISTING OF SHARES:

The Equity shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited 
(BSE). The Company has not yet paid the annual listing fees to the respective Stock Exchanges for the financial years 
2020-21 and 2021-22 due to financial crunch. The trading in shares of the Company continues to be suspended on 
both the Stock Exchanges viz:. National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited due to non-payment of 
annual listing fees (ALF).

DIVIDEND:

In view of losses, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2021-2022.
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There has been no change in the nature of business during the financial year under review.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

As on 31st March, 2022, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture company. Hence, 
preparation of consolidated financial statements and statement containing salient features of the Subsidiary/ Associate 
or Joint Ventures companies in Form AOC-1 as per the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable to the Company.

During the financial year under review, no company ceased to be subsidiary or associate or joint venture.

ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 is available on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed at www.euromultivision.com.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Hitesh Shah (DIN: 00043059), 
Chairman & Whole time Director of the Company, retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

As stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI), brief resume of Mr. Hitesh Shah, proposed to re-appointed, is annexed to the Notice 
convening 18th AGM.

During the year under review, in the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2021 the members appointed 
Mr. Hitesh Shah, as the Whole Time Director for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from 18th July, 2021 to 17th July, 
2026. Further, in the said Annual General Meeting, Mr. Navin Nandu, Mr. Margen Gada and Ms. Lata Mehta were 
re-appointed as Independent Directors for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from 30th September, 2021 to 29th 
September, 2026 and Mr. Amit Nandu and Ms. Seema Shaikh were appointed as the Non-Executive Directors.

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet 
the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) 
(b) of the Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as independent 
directors of the Company.

The Independent Directors of the Company have undertaken requisite steps towards the inclusion of their names in 
the databank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 
150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as per the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 22nd October, 2019.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions 
with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission, if any and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the 
purpose of attending meetings of the Board / Committee of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 
31, 2022 are Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman & Whole-time Director and Mr. Uday Thoria, Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company. 
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ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE BY THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF INDIVIDUAL 
DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own performance 
and that of its Committees and individual directors. Schedule IV to the Act, states that the performance evaluation of 
the independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. The 
Board works with the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria.

The Board has carried out evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the working of its Audit 
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company. The 
Board has devised questionnaire to evaluate the performances of each of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors. Such questions are prepared considering the business of the Company and the expectations that the Board 
have from each of the Directors. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of 
the following key areas:

i.	 Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings;

ii.	 Quality of contribution to Board deliberations;

iii.	 Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance;

iv.	 Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management.

v.	 Ability to contribute to and monitor our corporate governance practices

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of all the 
executive and non-executive directors. 

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held for evaluation of performance of non-independent Directors, 
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them and as required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 hereby state that:

1.	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

2.	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year 31st March, 2022 and of the loss of the Company for that period;

3.	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4.	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

5.	 the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

6.	 the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and strategies apart from 
the other business of the Board. 

The Notice of the Board Meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors of the Company. The Agenda of the 
Board/ Committee Meeting is circulated at least 7 (seven) days prior to the date of the meeting to enable the Directors 



EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED Annual Report 2021-22

16

to take an informed decision.

During the year under review, the Board met five (5) times i.e. on 29th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 12th November, 
2021, 8th February, 2022 and 30th March, 2022. The details of the meetings of Board of Directors and the attendance 
of the Directors at the meetings are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance. The intervening gap between 
the two consecutive meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, Listing regulations, 
Secretarial Standard on Board Meetings (SS-1) issued by ICSI.

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Act, a separate meeting of the 
Independent Directors of the Company was held on 8th February, 2022 to review the performance of Non- Independent 
Directors, the Board as whole, the Chairman of the Company and to discuss the matters related to the quality, quantity 
and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board has constituted its Committees in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per 
the Listing Regulations. There are currently three Committees of the Board, which are stated as follows:

a.	 Audit Committee;

b.	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee; and

c.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Details of all the Committees along with their charters, composition and meetings held during the year 2021-22, are 
provided in the “Report on Corporate Governance” which forms part of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS COMPOSITION:

The Audit Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the reports to be submitted 
with the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and accounting matters. It also supervises the Company’s internal 
control and financial reporting process.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted and approved by the Board.

The Composition of the Audit Committee is also given in the “Report on Corporate Governance” which forms part of 
this Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

At the 16th AGM of the Company held on 25th November, 2020, M/s. S. S. Singhvi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of the 16th AGM 
till the conclusion of 21st AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2025 and to audit the financial statements of the 
Company of financial years from 2020-21 to 2024-25, at a remuneration agreed between the Auditors and the Board 
of Directors. 

AUDITORS’ REPORT:

With reference to the observations made by the Statutory Auditors in their Report on the Audited Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2022 your Directors would like to reply as under: 

a.	 The Company’s financial facilities/arrangements including Term Loans, Working Capital Facilities and Non 
Fund Based Credit Facilities have expired and the accounts with the Banks have turned into Non Performing 
Assets.

	 The Company is unable to renegotiate, restructure or obtain replacement of financing arrangements and 
the banks have initiated legal proceedings for the recovery from the Company u/s. 19 of the Debt Recovery 
Tribunal (DRT), u/s. 13(2) of the Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security 
(Second) Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002. In addition to this, the Company has been continuously incurring 
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substantial losses since past few years and as on March 31, 2022, the Company’s current liabilities exceed 
its current assets by Rs. 40,773.08 lakhs. Further, the net-worth of the Company has fully eroded and the 
Company had filed for registration u/s. 15(1) of the erstwhile Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) 
Act, 1985, before the erstwhile Hon’ble Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction.

	 All the above events indicate a material uncertainty that casts a significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in 
the normal course of business. The financial results do not disclose the fact that the fundamental accounting 
assumption of going concern has not been followed.

	 Considering the changes and new developments taking place in the solar industry, the management is 
optimistic about the better opportunity and turnaround of the Company.

b.	 The Company has not provided for interest on banking credit facilities amounting to Rs. 2547.97 lakhs, for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2022 and Rs. 9767.65 lakhs, for the year ended March 31, 2022. Had the same been 
accounted for, the net loss (after tax) for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 would have been increased by Rs. 
2547.97 lakhs and for the year ended March 31, 2022, would have been increased by Rs. 9767.65 lakhs.

	 Further, this interest on banking credit facility has not been provided in the books of accounts since financial 
year 2014-15 and aggregate amount of which is subject to confirmation and reconciliation from banks.

	 The proceedings of NCLT are ongoing for the Company for the said matter.

c.	 The order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed on 27-Nov-2019, wherein it was directed to the Company to 
clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period of 2 months from the date 
of order, failing which the Bank will be entitled to sell the hypothecated assets, mortgage properties and other 
personal movable and immovable properties of the Company and guarantors. The Company received a letter 
dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable properties on 19-Apr-22. No communication has 
been received from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other authority with respect to the success or failure of the 
process. Also, no action has been taken by the Company till the date of this report and consequential impact 
is unascertainable.

	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with The Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency 
and Resolution Process (CIRP), which is pending for final hearing at NCLT. The consequential impact is 
unascertainable.

	 The proceedings of NCLT are ongoing for the Company for the said matter.

d.	 The Company has not provided for impairment or diminishing value of its assets as per ‘Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS) 36’ as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The effect of such Impairment 
or diminishing value has not been quantified by the management and hence the impact of the same is not 
ascertainable.

	 The management has a policy to maintain the assets and keep them in working condition, so that its value 
does not get affected in long run. The management is optimistic about realizing the value of its Assets / 
Investments nearest to its carrying amount, and there is no further diminution in the value of its assets/
investment other than depreciation / amortization.

e.	 The financial statements have been prepared with regards to non-receipt of confirmation of balances from 
few of the debtors, Unsecured Loans, loans & advances, investments, banks, sundry creditors and other 
liabilities. Pending receipt of confirmation of these balances and consequential reconciliations / adjustments, 
if any, the resultant impact on the financial statements is not ascertainable.

	 The Company has policy of confirming balances at least once in a year. However, on account of non-receipt 
of adequate and timely response, the same is still in process.

f.	 The financial statements are prepared considering non-ascertainment of complete particulars of dues to 
Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, if any under MSMED Act, 2006, and provisions towards interest, if any, 
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is not ascertained at this stage which is not in conformity with ‘Ind AS 37-Provision, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets’.

	 In view of the management, the impact will not be material.

g.	 The Company for its Optical Disc's manufacturing unit, had imported various Capital Goods under the 
Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG), of the Government of India, through various licenses, at 
concessional rates of Custom Duty on an undertaking to fulfill quantified exports within a period of eight 
years from the date of respective licenses. The Custom Duties so saved amounted to Rs. 2,538.56 lakhs and 
the corresponding Export obligation to be fulfilled amounted to Rs. 20,308.50 lakhs, however as on March 
31, 2022, the Export obligation yet to be fulfilled amounted to Rs. 19,121.60 lakhs. The stipulated period of 
8 years to fulfill Export obligation has already expired and the Company is required to pay the said saved 
Custom Duty together with interest @ 15% p.a. but the same has not been provided in books of accounts by 
the Company and the final liability is presently unascertainable.

	 The Company till date has not received any order quantifying the liability. In fact, the management has suo-
moto approached the appropriate authorities surrendered the licenses and have lodged the counter claim for 
extinguishing their liability under the license in view of relevant zero duty notification. Hence the management 
is optimistic of positive outcome.

h.	 The Company Secretary had resigned from the Company and the Company has not appointed any other 
person and the position stands vacant till the date of our report and therefore the company is not in compliance 
with Regulation 6 of LODR which requires Company Secretary to be appointed as Compliance Officer.

	 The Company is a sick unit and also in NCLT. It is difficult for the company to appoint Company Secretary.

i.	 The Company's Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit which is located in self-owned sector specific 
Special Economic Zone (SEZ). According to the SEZ Rules 2006, the units should have positive Net Foreign 
Exchange Earning (NFE), which shall be calculated as per applicable rules in cumulative blocks of five 
years, starting from the commencement of production. The company could not achieve positive Net Foreign 
Exchange Earnings in the first block of five years, hence the Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) has 
imposed a penalty of Rs. 2,500.00 lakhs under Rule 54 of the SEZ Rules 2006, and the same has not been 
provided in books of accounts by the Company.

	 The Company had filed an appeal against the Order of honorable DGFT, New Delhi with the Commerce 
Secretary, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and hearings have been completed. After hearing the submissions 
made on behalf of the Company, Appellant Committee has reserved its order till date.

j.	 In respect of deposits accepted by the company before the commencement of this Act, within the meaning of 
section 74 & 75 of the Act and the Rules framed there under, the principal amount of such deposits and interest 
due thereon remained unpaid even after expiry of one year from such commencement and the Company has 
not filed a statement within a period of three months from such commencement or from the date on which such 
payments, are due, with the Registrar details as prescribed u/s.74(1)(a). Further no application has been made for 
extension of time with the National Company Law Tribunal u/s.74(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in this regards.

	 Further, the Company has deposits in contravention to Section 73 read with Section 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

	 The non-compliances are unintentional and in absence of Whole Time Company Secretary earlier, the 
compliances were missed out inadvertently.

k.	 Overdue receivables aggregating to Rs. 41.16 lakhs as on March 31, 2022, towards sales of goods included 
under “Trade Receivables” owed to the Company by its Foreign Customers due for more than 6 months as 
on March 31, 2022. These balances have not been settled till March 31, 2022. The Company is yet to make an 
application to the authorized dealer or Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for overdue receivable balances beyond 
the prescribed time limits in accordance with Foreign Exchange Management Act (FEMA). Any penalties that 
may be levied by RBI are presently not known and not given effect to in the financial statements.
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	 Also, of the total amount receivable, as disclosed in the financial results, amounting to Rs. 65.18 lakhs, 
provisions for doubtful debts have been created at Rs. 64.42 lakhs. The allowance for bad and doubtful debts 
have been made based on the estimates and best possible judgement of the Company. 

	 The Expected Credit Loss Method as required under Ind AS 109, has not been followed while making provision 
for doubtful debts. Based on the above, we are unable to comment over the realisability of trade receivables, 
provisioning and its overall impact on the financial results.

	 The Company has made an application and initiated the process for compliance as per RBI guidelines.

l.	 Amounts aggregating to Rs. 37.91 lakhs disclosed under Trade Payables, in respect of purchase of traded 
goods, raw mate	 rials, spares and consumables from entities outside India, which are outstanding for 
more than 6 months, which is not in compliance with the Regulations / Guidelines of the Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999. Any penalties that may be levied by the Reserve Bank of India and/or any changes to 
the disclosure of the amounts in the financial results in this regard are not presently ascertainable.

	 The amount is towards material purchased for trading purpose and would be paid as and when demanded by 
the supplier.

m.	 The Company has borrowings, classified under Non-Current Financial Liabilities, which are borrowed from 
various related parties and other lenders, the repayment terms of which have not been agreed between the 
Company and the lenders. The Company has not fair valued such sums received in accordance with the 
provisions of ‘Ind AS – 109 – Financial Instrument’ and ‘Ind AS – 113 – Fair Value Measurement’. The effect of 
such treatment has not been quantified by the management and hence the same is not ascertainable.

	 The Company considers the same to be repayable on demand and hence no fair value is required to be done. 
Also, loans and borrowings are long outstanding and with no repayment terms.

n.	 The Company did not obtain actuarial report and had not made any provision for Gratuity and Leave 
Encashment for the year. The impact of such non-provisioning of liability is unascertainable on the results 
and also, relevant disclosures as required under Ind AS – 15, Employees Benefit have not been given.

	 The Company did not obtain such valuation report as the company is a sick unit and majority of the employees 
have left the company. However, the company has not written off the complete amount as it expects the same 
to be payable to the employees.

o.	 The Company has on the basis of their internal evaluation, valued inventories at Rs.16.67 lakhs. In the 
absence of valuation report or other documentary evidence confirming net realizable value of inventories, we 
are unable to comment on realization value of the inventories.

	 The inventories have become obsolete, old, expired and unusable. Last year. The management has written off 
the excess amount of inventory and has kept the inventory at realizable value.

p.	 The Company has Gratuity liability payable to the employees amounting to Rs. 32.93 lakhs, which are long 
outstanding. No interest has been provided by the Company over the same during the preparation of financial 
statements. The effect of such treatment has not been quantified by the management and hence the same is 
not ascertainable.

	 Most of the employees have left the Company, still the Company believes that claim may arise for such 
employees. However, on account of losses of the Company and the Company being sick, does not intend to 
provide for interest.

q.	 The system of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with regard to the Company were not made 
available to us to enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial control 
over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The management has internal control process in place. However, no risk control matrix has been documented. 
The management is planning to prepare the same at the earliest.
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r.	 The Company has TDS demand outstanding amounting to Rs. 2.96 lakhs, pertaining to the previous financial 
years. The Company is in the process of ascertaining the liabilities and rectifying such returns, wherever 
required. No adjustment has been made for the said sums in the financial statements.

	 The company is in the process of filing rectification returns and or make payments wherever required, if any.

	 During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors did not report any fraud under Section 143(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Shivlal Maurya & Co., Company 
Secretaries, Mumbai as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

The Report of the Secretarial Auditor for F.Y. 2021-22 is appended to this Report and marked as Annexure I.

With regard to observations made by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report, your Directors would like to state as 
under:

a)	 During the period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 the Company had not appointed a Company Secretary 
as required under section 203 of the Act;

	 The Company is in search of suitable candidate for the post of Company Secretary of the Company.

b) 	 the company has not complied with the provisions of Section 133 of the Act pertaining to ‘Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS) 36’ w.r.t Accounting for impairment or diminishing value of its assets, Ind AS 37 w.r.t non-
ascertainment of complete particulars of dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, if any under MSMED 
Act, 2006, Ind AS 113 w.r.t Fair Value Measurement and Ind AS 109 w.r.t Financial Instruments, Ind AS 15 w.r.t 
Employees Benefit, the brief particulars of which are stated in the Statutory Auditor’s Report in “point no d, f, 
m, n & k” under the heading Basis for Qualified opinion;

	 The Company has made the provisions for diminution in the value of its investments/assets wherever required 
in compliance of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 36. Management has a policy to maintain the assets 
and keep them in working condition, so that its value does not get affected in long run. The management is 
optimistic about realizing the value of its Assets / Investments nearest to its carrying value, and there is no 
further diminution in the value of its assets/investment other than depreciation / amortization and provided 
for.

	 The Company considers interest free borrowings as repayable on demand and hence no fair value is required 
to be done. Also, loans and borrowings are long outstanding and with no repayment terms and the Company 
did not obtain actuarial report as the Company is a sick unit and majority of the employees have left the 
Company. However, the Company has not written off the complete amount as it expects the same to be 
payable to the employees.

c)	 the Company has accepted deposit in contravention to Section 73 read with Section 76 of the Act;

	 The Company has borrowed sums to meet the working capital requirement of the Company. The compliances 
relating to the same were missed inadvertently on account of absence of Company Secretary earlier.

d)	 the Company has not complied with provision as prescribed under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Act pertaining to Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting, the brief particulars of which is 
stated in the Statutory Auditor’s Report in “point no q” under the heading Basis for Qualified opinion;

	 The management has internal control process in place. However, no risk control matrix has been documented. 
The management is planning to prepare the same at the earliest.

e)	 in respect of outstanding deposits as at 31st March, 2021, the company not filed Forms DPT-3;

	 The non-compliance in regards to para above is unintentional and the compliances were missed out 
inadvertently.
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f)	 pursuant to my observation at “a” above, the company was not in compliance with Regulation 6 of LODR for 
a period between 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 which requires Company Secretary to be appointed as 
Compliance Officer.;

	 The Company is in search of suitable candidate for the post of Company Secretary of the Company and 
further act as the Compliance Officer in terms of Regulation 6 of Listing Regulations.

g)	 The Company does not have system in place pursuant to the provision of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 regarding maintenance of the data of the Insiders;

	 The Company is process of appointing agency for maintain the data related to insiders.

Further, attention is drawn by Secretarial Auditor on major corporate events having a major bearing on the company’s 
affairs are as under:

1.	 The shareholding of the promoter namely Mr. Nenshi ladhabhai Shah and Mr. Rayshi Lakhdir Shah is freezed 
due to non compliance with respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for non-appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company.

2.	 Securities of the Company are suspended w.e.f. 12th February, 2021 from trading (vide Notice no. 20210112-49 
dated January 12, 2021), pursuant to the provisions of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 
dated January 22, 2020. The same is due to non payment of penalty by the Company to the National Stock 
Exchange Limited in respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for non-appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company

3.	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on 18th June, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP), which is pending for admission at NCLT. The consequential impact is unascertainable.

4.	 On 27th November, 2019, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT) was passed, wherein it has been directed to the 
Company to clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period of 2 months from 
the date of order, failing which the Bank will be entitled to sell the hypothecated assets, mortgage properties and other 
personal movable and immovable properties of the Company and guarantors. The Company has received a letter 
dated 25th February, 2022 for e-auction of certain asset of CD Division on 19th April, 2022 and were sold by the DRT 
for a price of Rs. 230 Lakhs, the proceed to which has been directly received by State Bank of India.

	 The Company has received a letter dated 23rd June, 2022 from DRT for e-auction for remaining asset of the 
Company on 3rd August, 2022, no further communication has been received by the Company from the concern 
authorities.

5.	 The Company's Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit which is located in self-owned sector specific Special 
Economic Zone (SEZ). According to the SEZ Rules 2006, the units should have positive Net Foreign Exchange 
Earning (NFE), which shall be calculated as per applicable rules in cumulative blocks of five years, starting from 
the commencement of production. The company could not achieve positive Net Foreign Exchange Earnings in 
the first block of five years, hence the Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) has imposed a penalty of Rs. 
2,500.00 lakhs under Rule 54 of the SEZ Rules 2006, and the same has not been provided in books of accounts 
by the Company.

Pursuant to circular No. CIR/ CFD/ CMD1/ 27/ 2019 dated February 8, 2019, issued by Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI), the Company has obtained Annual Secretarial Compliance Report, from M/s. Shivlal Maurya 
& Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (M. No. ACS 37655 C.P. No. 14053) on compliance of all applicable SEBI 
Regulations and circulars / guidelines issued thereunder and the copy of the same is submitted to the Stock Exchanges 
within the prescribed due date.

INTERNAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, and on recommendation of Audit Committee, M/s. Kavish Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were 
appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company w.e.f. 31st March, 2022, till the time they express unwillingness to act 
as such or the Board decides otherwise and such appointment was in pursuant to resignation tendered by M/s. Parita 
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Nandu & Associates w.e.f. close of business hours of 30th March, 2022. The Internal Auditors submit their report on 
periodical basis to the Audit Committee.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its 
compliances with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies and report the same to the Audit Committee 
on quarterly basis.

Based on the report of internal audit, the management takes corrective action in respective areas observed and 
thereby strengthen the controls.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company Policies, safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Audit Committee evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of financial control system prevailing in the Company, its 
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and strives to 
maintain the Standards in Internal Financial Controls.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, 
if any, in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The mechanism also provides for, adequate 
safeguards against victimization of directors and employees and also provides direct access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee in the exceptional cases. The details of the Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy is explained 
in the Report on Corporate Governance and is also made available on the website of the Company at http://www.
euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/vigil-mechanism-policy.pdf. We affirm that during the financial year 
2021-22, no employee or Director was denied access to the Audit Committee.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION:

Disclosure with respect to the ratio of remuneration of each Directors to the median employees’ remuneration 
as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure II to this Report.

During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits as prescribed under 
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

The particulars of employees in compliance of provisions of Section 134(3)(q) read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is available for inspection, to the 
members at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours on all working days (except Saturday and 
Public Holidays), for a period of 21 days before the ensuing 18th Annual General Meeting and up to the date of the 
Annual General Meeting between 10.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. 

REMUNERATION POLICY:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and on 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have adopted a Policy on criteria 
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management personal and their remuneration. The salient features of the 
Remuneration Policy are stated in the Report on Corporate Governance, part of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has laid down a well-defined Risk Management Policy covering the risk mapping, trend analysis, risk 
exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, 
manage and monitor both business and non-business risks. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the risk 
management policy and evaluates the systems managing the risks. The Board in addition to the Audit Committee also 
periodically reviews the risks and recommends the steps to be undertaken to control and mitigate the risks, through 
a well-organised framework.

http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/vigil-mechanism-policy.pdf
http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/vigil-mechanism-policy.pdf
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 
188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013, no related party transactions were entered during 
the year under review. Accordingly, the disclosure as required under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

As per Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations, the only material related party transaction entered by your Company was 
with Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman and Whole Time Director w.r.t. taking of loan and details of which are set out in the 
Notes to Financial Statements.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the website of the Company at 
http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20Policy.pdf. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013:

During the year under review, there were no loans, guarantee or investment made by the Company under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of outstanding loans, guarantees and investments 
are appearing in the Notes to Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS ACCEPTED FROM DIRECTORS OR RELATIVES OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, the Company has accepted loans from Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman and Whole Time 
Director of the Company and details of the same are stated hereunder:

 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of Directors/ 
Relatives

Director/ Relative of 
Director

Amount received 
during the year

Amount repaid 
during the year

Balance Outstanding as 
on March 31, 2022

Mr. Hitesh Shah Chairman and Whole 
Time Director

20.10 32.80 532.69

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

Details of significant/material orders are as below:

1.	 On 27th November, 2019, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT) was passed, wherein it has been directed to 
the Company to clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period of 2 months 
from the date of order, failing which the Bank will be entitled to sell the hypothecated assets, mortgage properties 
and other personal movable and immovable properties of the Company and guarantors. The Company has 
received a letter dated 25th February, 2022 for e-auction of certain asset of CD Division on 19th April, 2022 and 
were sold by the DRT for a price of Rs. 230 Lakhs, the proceed to which has been directly received by State Bank 
of India.

	 The Company has received a letter dated 23rd June, 2022 from DRT for e-auction for remaining asset of the 
Company on 3rd August, 2022, no further communication has been received by the Company from the concern 
authorities.

2.	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with The Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP), which is pending for admission at NCLT. The consequential impact is unascertainable.

3.	 Attention is also drawn, to the fact that, the Company's Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit which is 
located in self-owned sector specific Special Economic Zone (SEZ). According to the SEZ Rules 2006, the units 
should have positive Net Foreign Exchange Earning (NFE), which shall be calculated as per applicable rules in 
cumulative blocks of five years, starting from the commencement of production. The company could not achieve 
positive Net Foreign Exchange Earnings in the first block of five years, hence the Director General of Foreign 

http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/Related Party Transactions Policy.pdf
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Trade (DGFT) has imposed a penalty of Rs. 2,500.00 lakhs under Rule 54 of the SEZ Rules 2006, and the same 
has not been provided in books of accounts by the Company.

	 Other than the above no significant or material order has been passed by any regulator or court or tribunal, which 
impacts the going concern status of the Company or will have bearing on company's operations in future.

Further, the Company has received a letter dated 12th February, 2021 from trading (vide Notice no. 20210112-49 dated 
January 12, 2021), pursuant to the provisions of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 dated January 
22, 2020. The same is due to non payment of penalty by the Company to the National Stock Exchange Limited in 
respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for non-
appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company.

Further, the shareholding of the promoter namely Mr. Nenshi ladhabhai Shah and Mr. Rayshi Lakhdir Shah is freezed 
due to non-compliance with respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for non-appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company.

Further, the Company has also received a show cause notice for delisting of Equity Shares from National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited on the failure to comply with the below mentioned points:

1.	 Requirements of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for 
two consecutive quarters June 2020 and September 2020;

2.	 Non-payment of an amount of Rs. 19,00,980/- towards SOP Fines, including GST, as on August 10, 2021 and Rs. 
2,90,000/- towards Annual Listing Fee, including interest, as on August 16, 2021.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of 
the financial year 2021-22 to which this financial statements relates and the date of this report.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the following have been 
made a part of the Annual Report and are appended to this report:

a.	 Management Discussion and Analysis; 

b.	 Report on Corporate Governance; 

c.	 Declaration on Compliance with Code of Conduct;

d.	 Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or to act as director of the Company; and

e.	 Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance.

INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy to abide by letter 
and spirit requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. All the women employees either permanent, temporary or contractual are 
covered under the said policy. The said policy is updated internally to all the employees of the Company. The policy is 
available on the website of the Company at www.euromultivision.com. An Internal Compliant Committee (ICC) is not 
constituted as the same is not applicable to the Company.

The details of the complaints’ in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace filed/disposed/pending is 
given in the Report on Corporate Governance which is forming part of this Annual Report.
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PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Information in terms of requirement of clause (m) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is annexed as “Annexure III” forming part of this report. 

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made thereunder are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the Company has not developed and implemented 
any policy on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives.

MAINTAINENCE OF COST RECORDS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, the Government has not prescribed maintenance of the cost 
records in respect of services dealt with by the Company. Hence, the prescribed section for maintenance of cost 
records or cost audit is not applicable to the Company during the financial year under review.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the 
same during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF STATUS OF APPLICATION OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE: 

An application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on 18th June, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP), which is pending for admission at NCLT under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

During the period under review, no other applications filed under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM BANK OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS TEHROF: 

During the year under review, no such one-time settlement was done in respect of any loan taken by the Company 
from Banks / Financial Institutions.

APPRECIATION:

Your Directors acknowledges with gratitude and wishes to place on record, their deep appreciation for continued 
support and co-operation received by the Company from the various Government authorities, Shareholders, Bankers, 
Lenders, Business Associates, Dealers, Customers, Financial Institutions and Investors during the year.

Your Directors places on record their deep appreciation for the dedication and commitment provided by your 
Company’s employees at all levels and looks forward for their continued support in the future as well.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Euro Multivision Limited

		  Hitesh Shah
Place: Mumbai			   Chairman and Whole-Time Director
Date: 10th August, 2022	 DIN: 00043059
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Annexures to Boards’ Report

Annexure I

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended]

To,
The Members,
Euro Multivision Limited
Mumbai

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Euro Multivision Limited (CIN: L32300MH2004PLC145995) and having its registered office 
at F 12, ground floor, Sangam Arcade, Vallabhbhai Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai-400056 (hereinafter called ‘the 
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 and made available to me, according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018;

	 (d)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable 
to the company during the audit period);

	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
applicable to the company during the audit period);

	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable 
to the company during the audit period); and

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to 
the company during the audit period);

	  (i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

(vi)	 There is no other law which is specifically applicable on the Company as informed by the Company keeping in 
view there is no operational activities..

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(a)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general 
meetings.

(b)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE 
Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Standards, Guidelines, etc. as mentioned above subject to the following observations:

I	 Pertaining to Companies Act, 2013:

(a)	 During the period from 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 the Company had not appointed a Company Secretary 
as required under section 203 of the Act;

(b)	 the company has not complied with the provisions of Section 133 of the Act pertaining to ‘Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS) 36’ w.r.t Accounting for impairment or diminishing value of its assets, Ind AS 37 w.r.t non-
ascertainment of complete particulars of dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, if any under MSMED 
Act, 2006, Ind AS 113 w.r.t Fair Value Measurement and Ind AS 109 w.r.t Financial Instruments, Ind AS 15 w.r.t 
Employees Benefit, the brief particulars of which are stated in the Statutory Auditor’s Report in “point no d, f, m, 
n & k” under the heading Basis for Qualified opinion;

(c)	 the Company has accepted deposit in contravention to Section 73 read with Section 76 of the Act;

(d)	 the Company has not complied with provision as prescribed under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Act pertaining to Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting, the brief particulars of which is stated in 
the Statutory Auditor’s Report in “point no q” under the heading Basis for Qualified opinion;

(e)	 in respect of outstanding deposits as at 31st March, 2021, the company not filed Forms DPT-3;

II	 Pertaining to (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR):

(a)	 pursuant to my observation at “a” above, the company was not in compliance with Regulation 6 of LODR for 
a period between 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 which requires Company Secretary to be appointed as 
Compliance Officer.;

(b)	 The Company does not have system in place pursuant to the provision of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 regarding maintenance of the data of the Insiders;

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
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Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations Standards and 
guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were no major corporate events having a major bearing on the 
company’s affairs except as below.

1.	 The shareholding of the promoter namely Mr. Nenshi ladhabhai Shah and Mr. Rayshi Lakhdir Shah is freezed 
due to non compliance with respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for non-appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company.

2.	 Securities of the Company are suspended w.e.f. 12th February, 2021 from trading (vide Notice no. 20210112-49 
dated January 12, 2021), pursuant to the provisions of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 
dated January 22, 2020. The same is due to non payment of penalty by the Company to the National Stock 
Exchange Limited in respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for non-appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company

3.	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with the Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on 18th June, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP), which is pending for admission at NCLT. The consequential impact is unascertainable.

4.	 On 27th November, 2019, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT) was passed, wherein it has been directed to 
the Company to clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period of 2 months 
from the date of order, failing which the Bank will be entitled to sell the hypothecated assets, mortgage properties 
and other personal movable and immovable properties of the Company and guarantors. The Company has 
received a letter dated 25th February, 2022 for e-auction of certain asset of CD Division on 19th April, 2022 and 
were sold by the DRT for a price of Rs. 230 Lakhs, the proceed to which has been directly received by State Bank 
of India.

	 The Company has received a letter dated 23rd June, 2022 from DRT for e-auction for remaining asset of the 
Company on 3rd August, 2022, no further communication has been received by the Company from the concern 
authorities.

5.	 The Company's Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit which is located in self-owned sector specific Special 
Economic Zone (SEZ). According to the SEZ Rules 2006, the units should have positive Net Foreign Exchange 
Earning (NFE), which shall be calculated as per applicable rules in cumulative blocks of five years, starting from 
the commencement of production. The company could not achieve positive Net Foreign Exchange Earnings in 
the first block of five years, hence the Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) has imposed a penalty of Rs. 
2,500.00 lakhs under Rule 54 of the SEZ Rules 2006, and the same has not been provided in books of accounts 
by the Company.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this 
report.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2022

For Shivlal Maurya & Co.
Company Secretaries

UDIN: A037655D000773381

Shivlal Maurya
 M. No. ACS 37655 C.P. No. 14053
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‘Annexure A’

To,
The Members,
Euro Multivision Limited
Mumbai

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provided a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2022

For Shivlal Maurya & Co.
Company Secretaries

UDIN: A037655D000773381

Shivlal Maurya
 M. No. ACS 37655 C.P. No. 14053
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Annexures to Board’s Report

Annexure II

Disclosure as per Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
 (i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the 

financial year 2021-22 :-

Name of the Director Ratio of remuneration to the median remuneration of the 
employees

Company has not provided any remuneration to Directors. Hence, the ratio of remuneration of each Director to the Median 
remuneration of the employee cannot be determined. Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not paid sittings fees 
or commission.

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of 
each director, CFO, CEO, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year 2021-22.

During the current financial year no remuneration has been 
paid to the Directors of the Company.
Mr. Uday Champaklal Thoria, CFO of the Company has not 
been given any increments in the remuneration as compared 
to last year.

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees in the financial year 2020-21.

5% to 10%

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
the company as on 31st March, 2022.

06

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point 
out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration.

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees 
other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year 
is 5% to 10% as against no payment of salary to the Chairman 
& Whole Time Director & Executive Director (Managerial 
Personnel as defined under the Act). Annual increase in 
remuneration is based on different grades, industry pattern, 
qualification & experience, responsibilities shouldered and 
individual performance of managerial personnel and other 
employees.

Statement showing details of Employees of the Company as per Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

In pursuance to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. is not Applicable to the Company. Pursuant to 
the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid 
information is being sent to the members of the Company. The above mentioned statement is available for inspection 
for the members at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours and any member interested in obtaining 
such information may write to the Compliance Officer of the Company at info@euromultivision.com and the same will be 
furnished to them without any fee.

We hereby confirm that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the remuneration policy recommended by 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and as adopted by the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Euro Multivision Limited

	 Hitesh Shah 	 Navin Nandu
	 Chairman 	 Chairman of Nomination 
Place: Mumbai 	 & Whole Time Director 	 & Remuneration Committee
Date: 10th August, 2022	 DIN : 00043059	 DIN : 07114744
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Annexures to Board’s Report

Annexure III

STATEMENT OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING AND OUTGO PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

The information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is stated herewith and forms part of the Boards’ Report.

A.	 Conservation of Energy: 

	 In line with the Company’s commitment towards conservation of energy, all segments continue with their efforts 
to improve energy efficiency. Some of the additional steps taken are as under, which has helped the Company in 
cost reduction and product improvement: 

	 i.	 The manufacturing facility operates in Class 10000 (Class 10000 clean rooms, which enable to produce 
clean, sterile, aseptic and dust-free products and components) environment with antistatic work stations. 
The plant is fully automated with least human intervention, which ensures international quality standards 
with optimum utilization of installed capacities.

	 ii.	 The Company continues its efforts to reduce and optimize the use of energy consumption by opting power 
effective replacements of equipments and electrical installations.

	 The capital investment on energy conservation equipment – Nil

B.	 Research & Development and Technology Absorption:

	 a.	 The efforts made towards technology absorption – The Company continues to take prudential measures in 
respect of technology absorption, adaptation and take steps to use the scarce resources effectively. 

	 b.	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution 
– Not Applicable. 

	 c.	 In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year) – Not Applicable. 

	 d.	 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development – Not Applicable

C.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

	 The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo are provided in Notes forming part of the Financial 
Statements.

D.	 Future plan of action are as under:

	 The Company is considering sustainable business model keeping in view the changed and new developments 
taking place in the Solar Industry.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Euro Multivision Limited

	

Hitesh Shah
Place: Mumbai	 Chairman & Whole Time Director
Date: 10th August, 2022	 DIN: 00043059
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The total revenue (net) of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022, decreased by 61.22% and stood at INR 
38.27 Lakhs as against INR 98.69 Lakhs in the previous year. During the year, the Company has incurred loss of INR 
1,226.12 Lakhs as against loss of INR 1,408.84 Lakhs in the previous year. The Company has not provided for interest 
on financing facilities from secured lenders-banks which is yet subject to confirmation and / or settlement, amounting 
to INR 2,547.97 Lakhs, for the year ended 31st March 2022. Had the same been accounted for; the net loss (after tax), 
would have been increased by INR 9,767.65 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Further the COVID-19’s impact on lives and economy has been earth shattering. The lockdowns and restrictions had 
sent the global supply chain in disarray and had halted industrial growth and have brought to the fore the importance 
of building domestic manufacturing facilities.

MARKET OVERVIEW

India has made significant strides in generating capacity for solar energy in the last few years. The unit costs of solar 
power have fallen and solar energy has become increasingly competitive with alternative sources of energy.

The Indian solar energy market is expected to witness a CAGR of more than 8% up to the year up to 2030. The 
COVID-19 impact was mainly witnessed on the supply of solar panels and the delays in solar projects. The country 
was hit hard by the COVID-19 outbreak, which forced the government to employ either complete or partial lockdown, 
resulting in disruption of the solar panels manufacturing industry. Major factors driving the market are the declining 
cost of the solar modules and the government policies, like allowing 100% FDI under automatic route for renewable 
power generation and distribution projects, which is expected to increase the participation from global players into the 
Indian market. Moreover, the sharp decline in prices of solar technologies in recent years by more than 52% between 
2010 and 2019 has been one of the biggest drivers in the adoption of solar PV in the country. However, the cost of 
modules produced in China is 8-10% cheaper than the one manufactured in India, and about 80-85% of the solar 
modules used in India are manufactured in China. Therefore, the huge dependency on imports has affected domestic 
manufacturing in the country, which is further expected to hinder the growth of the market.

•	 The solar PV segment dominated the market share in 2019, and it is expected to be the largest segment up to the year 
2030, owing to supportive government policies to develop clean energy generation in the country's energy mix.

•	 India has an abundance of solar irradiance and receives solar energy throughout the year. This has created 
enormous opportunities to exploit solar energy from the sunniest sites in the country, especially Rajasthan, 
Gujarat, and Andhra Pradesh. The factor mentioned above, clubbed with foreign investment and extensive R&D 
projects, provides an opportunity for the growth of the solar energy market in India.

•	 The government of India has taken several initiatives with the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE), 
drafting plans and putting out tenders, which, in turn, is expected to drive the market.

The domestic manufacturing of solar PV cells/modules is behind due to reasons such as lack of manufacturing chain 
and skilled workforce and higher cost of production. 

Data from Ministry of New and Renewable Energy.

https://www.downtoearth.org.in/blog/energy/rise-in-chinese-solar-pv-module-price-the-implications-on-global-solar-growth-story-77892
http://164.100.47.193/lsscommittee/Energy/17_Energy_17.pdf
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SUPPORTIVE GOVERNMENT POLICIES TO DRIVE THE MARKET

•	 The country has identified renewable energy potential, such as solar and wind, in decarbonizing the economy 
and meeting targets as per the Paris Agreement. Moreover, the Government of India has been bent toward 
increasing the share of renewables in the country's energy mix.

•	 The government is aiming at 25,750 MW of new power generation capacity from solar plants under the ambitious 
Pradhan Mantri Kisan Urja Suraksha Evam Utthaan Mahabhiyan (PM-KUSUM) scheme by 2022, with total 
financials of more than INR 32,000 crore.

•	 Moreover, in 2016, India's government pledged that 40% of the country's installed electricity capacity is expected 
to come from renewable sources by 2030, as part of its Nationally Determined Contribution (NDC) for the 
commitments made at the Paris Agreement.

•	 As part of the Paris Agreement commitments, India's government set an ambitious target of achieving 175 GW 
of renewable energy capacity by 2022. In July 2019, the government announced that it was planning to increase 
the renewable energy target to 500 GW by 2030 to clean up the air in its cities and lessen the rapidly growing 
economy's dependence on coal.

•	 The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy launched the scheme in 2019, with three components - installation 
of 10,000 MW capacity through small renewable energy-based power plants of capacity up to 2 MW each on 
barren or fallow land of farmers, installation of 17.5 lakh standalone off-grid solar water pumps, and solarisation 
of 10 lakh existing grid-connected agriculture pumps.

•	 Moreover, the government plans to add 175 GW of renewable energy by 2022, which includes 100 GW of solar 
and 60 GW of wind energy. The country has spent more on investment in solar PV than in all fossil fuel sources of 
electricity generation together. Therefore, the government schemes and plans to increase the renewables share 
in the energy mix are expected to drive the solar energy market in India.

INDIA’S SOLAR POWER SECTOR IS HEAVILY RELIANT ON IMPORTS

In March 2021, India’s Ministry of New and Renewable Energy had noted that “India’s solar sector, just like in any 
other country of the world, is heavily reliant on imports of solar equipment.” Government have also noted instances of 
certain countries dumping solar cells and modules to kill the nascent domestic industry, because of which government 
had to impose safeguard duties. Covid-19 pandemic brought disruptions in international trade including imports 
of solar modules and solar cells affecting solar capacity additions in the country. Considering India’s huge solar 
targets and that electricity is a strategic sector of the economy, India needs to develop domestic solar manufacturing 
capacities and reduce its dependence on imports to avoid disruption in future.

In the first quarter (Q1) of the calendar year (CY) 2021, India imported solar cells and modules amounting to $259 
million (~₹18.93 billion), a 132% increase compared to Q4 CY 2020. The numbers are 72% higher than $150.57 
million (~₹10.83 billion) during the same period last year. The increase in imports was a result of improved demand 
due to the waning impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in Q1 2021. However, commercial activities had again slowed 
down because of the second wave of the pandemic that was ravaging the country. Solar exports also registered a 
significant growth of 293% and stood at $28.5 million (~₹2.08 billion) compared to $7.25 million (~₹528.4 million) in 
Q4 2020. The figures showed a marginal decline of 19% compared to $35.09 million (~₹2.51 billion) during the same 
period last year.

https://mnre.gov.in/img/documents/uploads/file_f-1615355045648.PDF
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China was the largest exporter of solar modules and cells to India in Q1 CY 2021, followed by Thailand, Vietnam, 
Malaysia, and Taiwan.

SOLAR EXPORTS IN Q1 2021

The United States continued to be the largest market for solar exports from India, followed by Nigeria, South Africa, 
Congo, and Saudi Arabia.

It had emphasized that the focus on achieving self-reliance has taken India toward the decision of “scaling up domestic 
manufacturing” which would also enable India to “export solar modules”. This would also provide other countries an 
alternative avenue for procuring solar modules. The government thus announced a basic custom duty (BCD) of 25 
percent on solar cells and 40 percent on solar modules from April 1, 2022.

CONCLUSION 

The solar industry is constantly evolving, characterized by rapid technological changes, upgrades and innovation. 
Adoption of these novel technologies will further bring down costs and soon enough, solar power will be the mainstream 
power source for most of the world’s population. This will, in turn have a positive impact on the environment and 
climate change as well. The same is true for solar plant components like PV panels, which are steadily moving 
towards higher-efficiencies, mainly due to improvement in solar cell technology. 

The future of solar industry in India and world-over appears to be extremely positive and exciting. While there have 
been incremental advancements in the existing solar technologies, researchers around the world are working on 
multiple projects like bio-solar cells, solar paints, wireless solar power transmission, solar energy harvesting trees, 
etc. Though a few years away, these cutting edge technologies, some of which are being field tested currently, not 
only have the potential to revolutionize the solar industry, but also to change our perspective about harnessing solar 
energy.

RISKS, OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Euro Multivision Limited aims to address risks, opportunities and threats posed by the business environment by 
developing appropriate risk mitigation measures. Our responses to these elements are discussed in the following 
section.

https://mnre.gov.in/img/documents/uploads/file_f-1615355045648.PDF
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TECHNOLOGY RISKS

The Company has manufacturing facilities of Solar PV cells and Optical Discs, where a key challenge is to ensure 
that the manufacturing facilities are equipped with technologies that can produce value added products, which are 
competitive in the market.

FOREX RISKS

 Volatility in currency markets can adversely affect the outcome of commercial transactions and cause uncertainties 
which will be protected with the margins against rapid and significant foreign exchange movements.

RISKS PERTAINING TO LEGAL ACTIONS BY THE BANKS

On 27-Nov-19, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed, wherein it has been directed to the Company to clear 
dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period of 2 months from the date of order. 
The Company received a letter dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable properties on 19-Apr-22. 
No communication has been received from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other authority with respect to the same.

Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial creditor with The Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP). The proceeding of the same are ongoing.

THREATS

•	 Substantial decline in price of Solar Photovoltaic Cells and erosion in demand.

•	 Non-utilization of our available manufacturing capacity.

•	 Reduction in, or elimination of, subsidies and economic incentives for on-grid solar energy applications.

•	 The solar industry is dominated by European countries and any downturn in these markets cause impact on the 
industry growth.

•	 The solar market is growing and competition is resulting decline in market share and margins.

•	 60% raw material cost is silicon wafer and its manufacturing is dominated by large / limited players.

•	 Continued dumping of PV Cells at cheap prices, however, Domestic Content may void the impact of dumping

•	 Technological Advancement and Improvement in Cell Efficiency has huge impact product marketability.

•	 New Optical Storage media options and their affordability is a huge threat for CDR and DVD R products.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded 
from loss, damage or disposition. The Company has independent Audit system to monitor the entire operations and 
the Audit Committee monitors the financial statements to ensure that transactions are adequately authorized and 
recorded, and that they are reported correctly. The Board of Directors considers internal controls as adequate as it 
regularly reviews the findings and recommendations of internal audit.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards. The results of the operations are 
discussed in the Boards’ Report.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Over the years, your Company has developed an environment, which fosters excellence in performance by empowering 
its people, who are always on continuous improvement path with an ultimate aim to add value to their intellectual and 
knowledge resources. The Company’s success depends largely upon the quality and competence of its management 
team and key personnel. There are six (6) employees in the Company as on 31st March 2022.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

There were no significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial 
year) in Key Financial Ratios.

RETURN ON NET WORTH

Return on Net worth during the previous and current financial year is negative due to losses.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws 
and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied due to risk and uncertainties. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include raw material availability and 
prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in Government regulations, tax 
regimes, economic developments within India and the countries in which the Company conducts business and other 
incidental factors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Euro Multivision Limited

		  Hitesh Shah
Place: Mumbai	 Chairman and Whole-Time Director
Date: 10th August, 2022		       DIN: 00043059
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is committed to adopt the best corporate governance practices and endeavours continuously to 
implement the best code of Corporate Governance in its true spirit. The philosophy of the Company in relation to 
Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in all its operations, make disclosures and to enhance shareholder’s 
values without compromising in any way in complying with the applicable laws and regulations.

The Board of Directors acknowledges that it has a fiduciary relationship and a corresponding duty towards the 
stakeholders to ensure that their rights are protected. Through the Corporate Governance mechanism in the 
Company, the Board along with its Committees endeavours to maintain a right balance of the company with its various 
stakeholders.

As per the requirements of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’), detailed Report on Corporate 
Governance as on 31st March, 2022 is set below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a.	 Composition

	 The Company is having an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive, Independent Directors and 
Woman Director on the Board as per the Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Board of Directors provides strategic direction and trust to the operations 
of the Company. As on 31st March, 2022 the Board of Directors comprises of six Directors out of which three 
are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. The composition of the Board 
of Directors as on 31st March, 2022 is in conformity with the provisions of the Act and Regulation 17 of Listing 
Regulations.

	 None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than ten public companies. None of the Independent 
Directors serves as an independent director in more than seven listed entities. None of the Directors is related to 
each other.

b.	 Board Procedure

	 The meetings of the Board are generally held at the registered office of the Company. The agenda for Board 
Meetings is prepared in consultation with the Chairman of the Board of Directors and that of the other Committees. 
The agenda for the meetings of the Board and its Committees, together with the appropriate supporting 
documents, are circulated well in advance as per the provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standard on Meetings 
of the Board of Directors (SS-1) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

	 Matters discussed at Board meetings generally relates to Company’s business operations, approval of the 
periodical results of the Company, approval of related party transactions, disclosure of General Notice of Interest 
of Directors, review of the reports of the Audit Committee and to do compliance with their recommendations and 
suggestions (if any), non-compliance (if any) of any regulatory provisions, status of investors complaints received 
and redressed, compliance with the statutory or listing requirements, etc.

c.	 Attendance at Board meetings

	 During the year under review, the Board of Directors met five (5) times viz. 29th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 
12th November, 2021, 8th February, 2022 and 30th March, 2022. As stipulated, the gap between two consecutive 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days as per the provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations and 
SS-1 issued by the ICSI. 

	 Details of composition and category of the Directors, their attendance at each meetings of the Board held during 
the financial year 2021-22 and at the last Annual General Meeting, their directorships held in other Companies 
and membership / chairmanship in committee’s are stated as under:
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Name of 
Directors

Category No. of Board 
meetings held

Whether 
present 
in last 
AGM

No. of 
Directorship 

held in 
other Public 
Companies#
(refer note 1)

Membership /
Chairmanship held in 
Committees in other 
Companies# (refer 

note 2 & 3)

No. of 
shares 

held

Held Attended Member Chairman
Mr. Hitesh 
Shah

Chairman & 
Whole Time 
Director

5 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil 2,96,634

Mr. Margen 
Gada

Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

5 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil -

Mr. Navin 
Nandu

Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

5 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil -

Mrs. Lata 
Mehta

Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

5 5 No Euro Ceramics 
Limited*
(Independent 
Director) 

Nil Nil -

Mr. Amit 
Nandu

Non-Executive, 
Non Independent 
Director

5 5 No Euro Infra 
Projects Limited 
(Additional 
Director)

Nil Nil -

Ms. Seema 
Shaikh

Non-Executive, 
Non Independent 
Director

5 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil -

	 * Euro Ceramics Limited is under Liquidation and the powers of the Board of Directors are suspended w.e.f. 25th 
February, 2019 and the same have been vested with and are being exercised by the Resolution Professional/
Liquidator.

	 # Note:

	 1.	 Directorships in respect of Private Limited Companies, Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Act 
and Foreign Companies have not been included. 

	 2.	 Membership and Chairmanship position in Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are 
considered.

	 3.	 None of the Directors is a member in more than Ten Committees or a Chairman in more than Five 
Committees [as specified in Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations] across all the companies in which they 
are directors.

	 4.	 None of the Independent Director serves as an Independent Director in more than seven listed companies. 

		  [as specified in Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations].

	 5.	 No Director is related to any other Director on the Board.

d.	 Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

	 As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 25(3) of the 
Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 8th February, 
2022 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the Board as whole 
and to ensure that system devised for checking the flow of information between the Board and the Management 
is operating effectively and vice versa.
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e.	 Directors’ Familiarization Programme

	 The Company undertakes and makes necessary provisions for conducting appropriate induction programmes 
for new Directors and for ongoing training for the existing Directors. The new directors are introduced to the 
Company’s culture through appropriate training programmes. Such kind of training programmes helps to develop 
good relationship of the directors with the Company and familiarizes them with Company’s environment, culture 
and its processes. The management provides such information and training either at the meeting of Board of 
Directors or otherwise.

	 The induction process is designed to:

	 •	 build an understanding for the Company’s processes; and

	 •	 to fully equip the Directors to perform their role on the Board effectively; 

	 Upon appointment, Directors receive a Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of their appointment, 
duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. The details of Director’s induction and familiarization 
programmes are available on the Company’s website at http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/
pdf/Appointment%20of%20Directors%20KMPS%20and%20Senior%20Management%20(Remuneration)%20
and%20Evaluation%20of%20performance%20Policy.pdf.

f.	 Agenda

	 All the meetings are conducted as per well designed and structured agenda. All the agenda items are backed 
by necessary supporting information and documents (except for the critical price sensitive information, which is 
circulated in the meeting) to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of all 
the Board and Committees meetings, included for reference of the Board. Agenda papers are circulated atleast 
seven days prior to the Board Meeting as the provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standard on Board Meetings 
(SS-1) issued by ICSI. In addition to this, for any business exigencies, the Resolutions are passed by Circulation 
and later on placed and noted in the ensuing Board Meeting.

g.	 Information placed before the Board Members:

	 Matters discussed at meetings of the Board generally relate to Company's business, annual operating plans, 
capital budgets, quarterly/half yearly/annual results/ annual financial statements, review of the reports of the 
Audit Committee, taking note of the minutes of the various other Committee meetings, and compliance with 
their recommendation(s), suggestion(s), status on compliance / non-compliance of any regulation, statutory or 
listing requirements, if any, etc. As specified under Part A to Schedule II of the Listing Regulations the information 
as related/ applicable to the Company during the financial year 2021-22 was placed before the Board for their 
consideration.

h.	 Confirmation on independent directors

	 In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing 
Regulations and are independent of the management of the Company.

i.	 Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director

	 During the year under review, no Independent Director has resigned from the Board of the Company. 

j.	 Code of Conduct

	 The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board of Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel. The Code covers things such as the Company’s commitment to honest and ethical personal conduct, 
fair competition, corporate social responsibility, sustainable environment, health and safety, transparency and 
compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations etc. 

	 The copy of said Code of Conduct is available on Company’s website at http://www.euromultivision.com/
photovoltaic/images/pdf/code_of_conduct.pdf. All the Board members and Senior Mmanagement Personnel 
have confirmed compliance with the code. A declaration by Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman and Whole-time Director 

http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/Appointment of Directors KMPS and Senior Management (Remuneration) and Evaluation of performance Policy.pdf
http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/Appointment of Directors KMPS and Senior Management (Remuneration) and Evaluation of performance Policy.pdf
http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/Appointment of Directors KMPS and Senior Management (Remuneration) and Evaluation of performance Policy.pdf
http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/code_of_conduct.pdf
http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/code_of_conduct.pdf
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of the Company affirming the compliance of the same for the year ended 31st March, 2022 by the members of the 
Board and Senior Management Personnel, as applicable to them, is also annexed to this Annual Report.

	 As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading. All the Directors, Designated Employees who could have access to the unpublished 
price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this code. The trading window is closed during the 
time of declaration of results and occurrence of any material events as per the said code.

k.	 Notes on Directors appointment / re-appointment

	 Brief resume(s) of the Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman and Whole Time Director proposed to be re-appointed are 
given in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

	 SKILLS / EXPERTISE / COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

	 The Board comprises of qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise that allow 
them to make effective contributions to the Board and its committees. The Board members are committed to 
ensuring that the Board is in compliance with the highest standards of corporate governance.

	 The table below summarizes the key qualification, skills, and attributes which are taken into consideration while 
nominating candidates to serve on the Board:

Gender, ethics, 
national, or other 
diversity

Representation of gender, ethics, geographic, cultural, or other perspective that expand the 
Board's understanding of the needs and viewpoints of our customers, partners, employees, 
governments, and other stakeholders worldwide.

Financial Leadership in management of finance function of an enterprise, resulting in proficiency 
in complex financial management, capital allocation, and financial reporting process, 
or experience in actively supervising accountant, auditor or person performing financial 
functions.

Global Business Experience in driving business success in markets around the world, with an understanding of 
diverse business environments, economic conditions, cultures, and regulatory frameworks, 
and board perspective on global market opportunities.

Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting in a practical 
understanding of organizations, processes, strategic planning, and risk management. 
Strengths in developing talent, planning succession, and driving change and long-term 
growth.

Technology Significant background in technology, resulting in knowledge of how to anticipate technological 
trends, generates disruptive innovation, and extends or create new business model.

Board Services and 
Governance

Service on a public company Board to develop insights about maintaining Board and 
management accountability, protecting shareholder interests, and observing appropriate 
governance practices.

Sales and Marketing Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and market share, build brand awareness 
and equity and enhance enterprise reputation.

	 The above list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context 
of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively, are available with the Board.
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	 Name of the Director possessing the skills / expertise / competence:

Particulars Mr. Hitesh 
Shah

Mr. Margen 
Gada

Mr. Navin 
Nandu

Mrs. Lata 
Mehta

Mr. Amit 
Nandu

Ms. Seema 
Shaikh

Strategy & Business Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Industry Expertise Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Financials Yes Yes Yes - Yes -

Leadership Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Technology Yes Yes - - - -

Board Services and
Governance

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Sales and Marketing Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Gender, ethics, 
national, or other 
diversity

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

	 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

	 The Committees of the Board focuses on certain specific areas and makes informed decisions in that areas each 
Committee of the Board functions according to its charter which defines its composition, scope, powers, roles and 
responsibility and as per the scope provided in the Act and the Listing Regulations. Presently, the Board has the 
following three Committees:

	 (a)	 Audit Committee;

	 (b)	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee; and

	 (c)	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

	 The roles and responsibilities assigned to these Committees are covered under the terms of reference as 
approved by the Board and are subject to review by the Board from time to time. The minutes of the meetings of 
Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee are placed 
before the Board for their consideration and noting. The details of the composition, terms of reference, number of 
meetings and attendance of these Committees are provided below:

	 a.	 Audit Committee

		  The Board has constituted a well-qualified Audit Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 
177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations, which exercises the powers and discharges the 
functions as stipulated under the applicable laws. The Committee also undertakes and reviews such matters 
as may be delegated to them by the Board from time to time.

		  As on 31st March, 2022, the Committee comprises of three Independent Directors and one Executive 
Director of the Company. All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and Mr. Navin 
Nandu, Chairman of the Committee is experienced in Finance. He has relevant accounting and financial 
management expertise. The Statutory Auditors are also invited in the meetings where the financials of 
the Company are discussed. The Committee oversees the work carried out by the management, internal 
auditors on the financial reporting process, the safeguards employed by them and such relevant matters as 
it finds necessary to entrust.

		  The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the year under review on 29th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 
12th November, 2021, 8th February, 2022 and 30th March, 2022. The number of meetings attended by each 
member during the year ended 31st March, 2022 are stated herewith: 
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Name of the member Designation No. of Committee Meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Navin Nandu Chairman 5 5

Mr. Margen Gada Member 5 5

Mrs. Lata Mehta Member 5 5

Mr. Hitesh Shah Member 5 5

		  As stipulated by the Act, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on Board Meetings (SS-1) issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”), the gap between any two meetings of the Audit 
Committee did not exceed one hundred and twenty days and the quorum was present for all meetings as 
required. 

		  Mr. Navin Nandu, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 29th September, 2021. The Compliance Officer of the Company acts as the Secretary to 
the Committee.

		  	 Terms of reference of Audit Committee

			   The terms of reference of this Committee are wide. Besides having access to all the required information 
from the Company; the Committee acts as a link between the Statutory Auditors and the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

			   The broad terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

			   •	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

			   •	 Recommending the appointment/re-appointment, terms of appointment and removal of auditors, 
fixation of audit fees and approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered;

			   •	 Reviewing with management the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, focusing primarily on:

				    - 	 Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

				    - 	 Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

				    - 	 Qualifications in draft audit report;

				    - 	 Significant adjustments arising out of audit;

				    - 	 the going concern assumption;

				    - 	 Compliance with accounting standards;

				    - 	� Compliance made with the stock exchanges and legal requirements (if any) concerning the 
financial statements.

				    - 	� Any related party transactions including material transactions of the Company, with promoters/ 
promoters group or with their relatives or with the management, their subsidiaries, etc. that 
may have potential conflict with the interest of Company at large.

					     Matter to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement.

					     •	� Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and the 
adequacy of internal control systems;

					     •	� Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading of the department, reporting 
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
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					     •	 Discussion with internal auditors and significant findings and follow up thereon;

					     •	� Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations made by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

					     •	� Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about nature and scope 
of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

					     •	 Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies;

					     •	� To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture-
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

					     •	� Discussions with the auditors periodically about internal control systems, the scope of 
audit including the observations of the auditors and reviewing the quarterly, half yearly, 
and annual financial statements before submission to the Board;

					     •	 To appoint the Chief Financial Officer of the Company;

					     •	 To review the functioning of the Vigil mechanism/ Whistle blower mechanism;

					     •	 Review the statement of Management Discussions & Analysis; 

					     •	 Letter of Statutory Auditors to management on internal control weakness, if any;

					     •	� The Committee also monitors the implementation and compliance with the Company’s 
Code of Conduct for prohibition of Insider Trading; 

					     •	� Utilization of loans/advances /investment made by the holding company in the subsidiary 
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is 
lower including existing loans / advances / investments;

					     •	� consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholder;

					     •	� approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related 
parties;

					     •	 scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

					     •	 valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary.

	 b.	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

		  The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee is primarily empowered to carry out below 
mentioned role:

		  1.	 to examine and redress the complaints and grievances of the shareholders/investors of the Company 
such as transfer / transmission / demat / remat of shares, issue of duplicate, split-up, consolidation, 
renewal of share certificate, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of dividend, non-receipt of 
application money and other issues concerning the shareholders / investors;

		  2.	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

		  3.	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

		  4.	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 
by the shareholders of the company
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			   As on 31st March, 2022 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of one Executive and three 
Independent Directors. The Committee met 4 (four) times during the year under review on 29th June, 
2021, 13th August, 2021, 12th November, 2021 and 8th February, 2022. The number of meetings attended 
by each of the member during the year ended 31st March, 2022 is stated herewith:

Name of the member Designation No. of Committee Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Navin Nandu Chairman 4 4

Mr. Margen Gada Member 4 4

Mrs. Lata Mehta Member 4 4

Mr. Hitesh Shah Member 4 4

			   Mr. Navin Nandu, Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was present at the last Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2021. The Compliance Officer of the Company 
acts as the Secretary of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company. Mr. Hitesh Shah being 
appointed as Compliance Officer is responsible for addressing the investors' complaints.

			   	 Status of Investors’ Complaint as on end of the financial year 2021-22 is stated herewith:

				�    The following is the status of the complaints received and redressed, during the financial year 
2021-2022:

Opening at the 
beginning of the year

Received during the 
year

Resolved during the 
year

Pending at the end of 
the year

NIL NIL NIL NIL

	 c.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

		  The constitution and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in compliance 
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Independent Directors.

		  During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two (2) times on 29th June, 
2021 and 13th August, 2021 The number of meetings attended by each member during the year ended 31st 
March, 2022 is stated herewith:

Name of the member Designation No. of Committee Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Navin Nandu Chairman 2 2

Mr. Margen Gada Member 2 2

Mrs. Lata Mehta Member 2 2

		  Mr. Navin Nandu, Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present at the last Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2021.

		  	 Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

			   The Committee is empowered to:

			   •	 Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors 
and evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors.

			   •	 Identification and assessing potential individuals with respect to their expertise, skills, attributes, 
personal and professional standing for appointment and re-appointment as Directors / Independent 
Directors on the Board and as Key Managerial Personnel.
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				    Formulate a policy relating to remuneration for the Directors, Committee and also the Senior 
Management Employees of the Company. The same is also available on the website of the 
Company at www.euromultivision.com.

				    Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors 
their appointment and removal. 

				    Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

				    Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

		  	 Performance Evaluation criteria

			   The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has approved the Policy on Board evaluation, evaluation 
of Board Committees’ functioning and evaluation of the Individual Directors; pursuant to the norms 
prescribed by the Act and Listing Regulations.

			   The evaluation is based on various factors which are follows:

			   •	 Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings;

			   •	 Level of Participation;

			   •	 Contribution to the development of strategies and Risk Assessment and Management;

			   •	 Overall interaction with the other members of the Board.

		  	 Remuneration Policy

			   The Company follows a comprehensive policy for selection, recommendation, appointment of 
Directors and other Senior Managerial Employees and also on the remuneration, and such other 
related provisions as may be applicable. The remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards 
rewarding performance, based on review of achievements on a periodic basis. The remuneration policy 
is in consonance with the industry standards.

			   a.	 Selection

				    •	� Any person to be appointed as a Director on the Board of Directors of the Company or as 
KMP or Senior Management Personnel, including Independent Directors, shall possess 
appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of sciences, actuarial 
sciences, banking, finance, economics, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, 
research, corporate governance or technical operations.

				    •	� Any person to be appointed as a Director on the Board of the Company shall possess the 
relevant experience and shall be able to provide policy directions to the Company, including 
directions on good corporate governance.

				    •	� While appointing any person as Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director or a Whole-
time Director of the Company, his / her educational qualification, work experience, industry 
experience, etc. shall be considered.

			   b.	 Remuneration to Executive Directors

				    •	� At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Whole-time Director shall be paid such 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Whole-time 
Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Act.

				    •	� The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General 
Meeting.

http://www.euromultivision.com
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				    •	� In determining the remuneration the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consider 
the following:

					     a)	 The relationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear;

					     b)	� Balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

					     c)	� Responsibility of the Managing Director’s and the industry benchmarks and the current 
trends;

					     d)	� The Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement and individual 
performance.

			   c.	 Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

				    The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, 
reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board / Committee meetings. A Non-Executive 
Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee of 
the Board attended by him at such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the 
overall limits prescribed under the Act read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

				    The Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to participate in Stock Option 
Scheme of the Company, if any, introduced by the Company.

			   d.	 Remuneration of Senior Management Employees

				    In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management employees (i.e. KMPs and Executive 
Committee Members) the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consider the following:

				    a)	 The relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear;

				    b)	� The fixed pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the Company and its goals;

				    c)	 The components of remuneration include salaries, perquisites and retirement benefits;

				    d)	� The remuneration including annual increment and performance incentive is decided based on the 
criticality of the roles and responsibilities, the Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual budget 
achievement, industry benchmark and current compensation trends in the market.

	 Details of remuneration and sitting fees paid to the Directors / KMP and Number of Equity Shares held by them 
during the year ended 31st March, 2022:

	 Details of remuneration/sitting fees paid during the year 2021-22 and number of shares held as on 31st March, 
2022 by the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows:

(Amount in Rs. Except for shares)
Name of the 
Directors/ KMP

Salary & 
Perquisites

Performance/ 
Incentive/ Bonus

Commission Sitting 
Fees

Total No. of 
Shares held

Mr. Hitesh Shah - - - - - 2,96,634

Mr. Margen Gada - - - - - -

Mr. Navin Nandu - - - - - -

Mrs. Lata Mehta - - - - - -

Mr. Amit Nandu - - - - - -

Ms. Seema Shaikh - - - - - -

Mr. Uday Thoria 60,000 - - - 60,000 10
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	 a. 	 The Company has not granted any Stock Options.

	 b. 	 There are no separate service contracts with any of the directors. The current tenure of office of the Whole-
time Director is for five (5) years from his respective date of appointment. There is no separate provision for 
payment of severance fees.

	 c. 	 Apart from the above mentioned remuneration or fees paid, there are no other fixed components and 
performance linked incentives based on the performance criteria.

		  No remuneration/compensation is paid to Non-Executive Directors.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Details with respect of date, location and time of preceding three Annual General Meetings are given below:

Financial 
Year

Date Time Venue Special Resolution passed

2020-21 29th September, 2021 10.00 a.m. Held through video 
Conferencing (‘VC’) facility 
or other audio visual means 
(‘OAVM’)

1.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Navin 
P Nandu as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

2.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Margen 
V. Gada as an Independent 
Director of the Company

3.	 Re-appointment of Mrs. Lata 
T. Mehta as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

2019-20 25th November, 2020 10.00 a.m. Held through video 
Conferencing (‘VC’) facility 
or other audio visual means 
(‘OAVM’)

-

2018-19 16th September, 2019 10.00 a.m. Gomantak Seva Sangh, 
72/A, Mahant Road 
Extension, Vile Parle 
(East), Mumbai- 400 057 

-

•	 Postal Ballot

	 During the financial year under review, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot. None of the businesses 
proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing a resolution through Postal 
Ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

•	 Publication of results

	 The quarterly/half yearly and yearly ffinancial results are sent to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited immediately after they are approved by the Board in their meeting. The results are also published 
in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations in English Newspaper viz. “Business Standard” 
and in Marathi newspaper viz. “Mumbai Lakshadeep”. The results are posted on Company’s website www.
euromultivision.com and are also available on websites of National Stock Exchange of India Limited i.e. www.
nseindia.com and BSE Limited i.e. www.bseindia.com.

•	 Presentations / Press Releases

	 The Company has not made any presentations/press release to institutional investors or to the analysts during 
the year under review.

http://www.euromultivision.com
http://www.euromultivision.com
http://www.nseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com
http://www.bseindia.com
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GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

 
(a) 

Date, Day, Time and 
Venue of Annual General 
Meeting

Venue : 
Thursday, the 29th day of September, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. through video Conferencing 
(‘VC’) facility or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’)

(b) Financial Year 1st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022

(c) Financial Calendar 
(2022-23) 

Result for the quarter ended 30th June, 2022 On 10th August, 2022

Result for the quarter ending 30th September, 2022 On or before 14th November, 2022

Result for the quarter ending 31st December, 2022 On or before 14th February, 2023

Audited Result for the year/ quarter ending 31st 
March, 2023

On or before 30th May, 2023

(d) Dividend Payment Date Not applicable 

(e) Date of Book Closure Not applicable

(f) E-voting period Monday, 26th September, 2022 at 9.00 AM and ends on Wednesday, 28th September, 
2022 at 5.00 PM.

(g) Listing on Stock 
Exchanges

BSE Limited (BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal 
Street, Mumbai - 400001 

National Stock Exchange of (India) Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, C-1,Block G. Bandra Kurla 
Complex Bandra, East, Mumbai- 400051 

(h) Stock Code / Symbol BSE : 533109 
NSE : EUROMULTI

(i) ISIN for CDSL and NSDL IN063J01011

(j) Commodity price risk or 
foreign exchange risk 
and hedging activities

Not Applicable

k) 	 Listing fees:

	 The Company has not paid the annual listing fees to the respective Stock Exchanges for the financial years 2020-
21 and 2021-22 due to financial crunch.

(l) 	 Market Price Data:

	 The monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE) with corresponding details of BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty during each month in F.Y.2021-22 
are as follows: 

Month BSE* BSE Sensex* NSE** Nifty** (Points)
High

(in Rs)
Low

(in Rs.)
High Low High

(in Rs.)
Low

(in Rs.)
High Low

Apr-21 1.24 1.18 50375.77 47204.50 1.05 0.90 14597.55 14353.20
May-21 1.13 1.03 52013.22 48028.07 1.05 0.80 14938.00 14725.35
Jun-21 1.27 1.02 53126.73 51450.58 1.25 1.05 15901.60 15842.40
Jul-21 1.51 1.27 53290.81 51802.73 1.45 1.20 15952.35 15855.00
Aug-21 1.57 1.43 57625.26 52804.08 1.50 1.30 16589.40 16480.75
Sep-21 1.50 1.43 60412.32 57263.90

Not 
Traded

Not 
Traded

17532.70 17386.90
Oct-21 1.57 1.36 62245.43 58551.14 18543.15 18445.30
Nov-21 1.50 1.43 61036.56 56382.93 18210.15 18071.30
Dec-21 1.57 1.36 59203.37 55132.68 17351.20 17192.20
Jan-22

Not 
Traded

Not 
Traded

61475.15 56409.63 18321.55 18228.75
Feb-22 59618.51 54383.20 17375.00 16839.25
Mar-22 58890.92 52260.82 16927.75 16555.00

	 Source: * www.bseindia.com, ** www.nseindia.com

http://www.bseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com
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	 Securities of the Company are suspended w.e.f. 12th February, 2021 from trading (vide Notice no. 20210112-49 
dated January 12, 2021), pursuant to the provisions of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 
dated January 22, 2020. The same is due to non payment of penalty by the Company to the National Stock 
Exchange Limited in respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for non-appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company

	 Securities of the Company are suspended w.e.f. 31st August, 2021 from trading (vide Notice no.	 20210816-
19 dated 16th August, 2021), pursuant to the provisions of Suspension of trading in securities of companies for 
non-compliances of certain Regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The same is due to non payment of penalty by the Company to the National Stock Exchange Limited in 
respect to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for non-
appointment of six (6) directors on the Board of the Company

(m) 	Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

	 M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited has been appointed as one point agency, for dealing with the shareholders. 
Shareholders should address their communications or correspondence to the Company’s Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent at the address mentioned below:

	 M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited 
	 C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
	 Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083
	 Tel: 91 22 2594 6970
	 Fax: 91 22 2594 6969
	 E-mail: helpline@linkintime.co.in

(n) 	 Share Transfer System:

	 All the shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent within the 
prescribed time, if documents are found in order. Shares under objection, if any, are returned within two weeks. 
All requests for dematerialization of shares, if any, are processed and the confirmation is given to the respective 
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) within 21 days. The Company obtains, from a Practicing Company Secretary, a Certificate of Compliance 
with the share transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations and files a copy 
of the said certificate with the concerned Stock Exchanges.

	 However, as per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June, 2018 and further amendment 
vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated 30th November, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of 
securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processed from 1st April, 2019 
unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories. 

	 Further, SEBI in continuation of its efforts to enhance ease of dealing in securities market by investors vide its 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTA MB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022, has mandated the listed 
entities to issue securities in dematerialised form only while processing service requests viz. issue of duplicate 
securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate; 
endorsement, subdivision/splitting, consolidation of securities certificate, transmission and transposition. 
Members are accordingly advised to get their shares held in physical form dematerialized through their Depository 
Participant.

mailto:helpline@linkintime.co.in
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(o) 	 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:

Shareholding (No. of 
Shares)

Number of 
shareholders

% of total 
shareholders

Total Number of 
Shares

% of Total Number 
of Shares

1 to 500 6217 74.9036 1088254 4.5725

501 to 1000 1009 12.1566 841073 3.5339

1001 to 2000 477 5.747 750685 3.1541

2001 to 3000 176 2.1205 460662 1.9356

3001 to 4000 80 0.9639 281296 1.1819

4001 to 5000 75 0.9036 355446 1.4935

5001 to 10000 138 1.6627 1044294 4.3878

10001 and above 128 1.5422 18978339 79.7408

Total 8300 100.00 23800049 100.00

(p) 	 Categories of equity shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:

Sr. No. Category of Shareholders Number of shares held Percentage of 
Shareholding (%)

1 Promoters & Promoters Group 10663563  44.80 

4 Bodies Corporate 902012  3.79 

5 Hindu Undivided Family 1256636  5.28 

6 Office Bearers 100  0.00 

7 Trusts 300  0.00 

8 Clearing Members 2230  0.01 

9 Non Resident Indians 141761  0.60 

10 Non Resident (Non Repatriable) 49047  0.21 

11 Public 10784400  45.31 

Total 23800049 100.00

(q) 	 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity 

	 As on 31st March, 2022 the total number of Equity Shares of the Company in dematerialized form, stood at 
2,37,99,859 shares (representing 99.99% of the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company).

(r) 	 Outstanding ADRS’, GDRS’, Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and impact on 
Equity

	 As on 31st March, 2022, the Company does not have any outstanding ADRs’, GDRs’, Warrants or any convertible 
instruments. 

(s) 	 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

	 Not Applicable

(t) 	 Plant Location

	 Optical Disc Unit: Survey No. 508, 509, Village Shikara, Bhachau Dudhai Road, Bhachau (Kutch), Gujarat – 
370140.

	 Solar Photovoltic Cell Unit: Survey No. 492, 504, 505(1), 505(2), 506, Village Shikara, Bhachau Dudhai Road, 
Bhachau (Kutch), Gujarat – 370140
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(v) 	 Address for Investor Correspondence

	 Shareholders can contact the Compliance Officer of the Company for Share / Secretarial related matters at the 
below mentioned address:

	 Mr. Hitesh Shah 
	 Compliance Officer
	 Euro Multivision Limited
	 F/12, Ground Floor, Sangam Arcade,
	 Vallabhbhai Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400056
	 E-mail Id: info@euromultivison.com
	 Tel No.: 91 22 4036 4036
	 Fax No.: 91 22 4036 4037

(w)	 Company has not obtained credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during 
the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any 
scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad.

DISCLOSURES:

a.	 Related-party transactions 

	 There were no materially significant transactions with related parties, pecuniary transactions or relationship 
between the Company and its Directors during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 that may have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. However, the transaction with Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman and 
Whole Time Director related to Loan taken by the Company is material in nature. The details of the same are 
appearing in the Notes to Accounts forming part of the Annual Report.

	 The transactions with the related parties, as per the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standards, are 
disclosed in the Notes on Accounts, forming part of the Annual Report. The policy on dealing with Related 
Party Transactions is available on Company’s website at http://www.euromultivision.com/photovoltaic/images/
pdf/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20Policy.pdf

b.	 Compliances related to Capital Market

	 The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) and other statutory authorities on all matters relating to capital market during the last three years. 
No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or other statutory 
authorities except the following:

Sr. 
No

Action taken 
by

Details of violation Details of action taken 
E.g. fines, warning letter, 
debarment, etc.

Observations/ remarks of 
the Practicing Company 
Secretary, if any.

1 National Stock 
Exchange of 
India Limited
(NSE)

Regulation 17(1) Non 
–Compliance with 
requirement to appoint 
of atleast six directors 
on the board by top 2000 
Listed Company on the 
NSE
(Number of companies 
listed on NSE as on 
March 31, 2022 are 
2,012. Based on market 
capitalization as on 
March 31, 2022, Euro 
Multivision Limited is 
ranked at 1,925 in the 
list)

Fines of Rs, 16,22,500/- 
(including GST) Vide various 
letters & latest letter dated 7th 
March, 2022 is as follows.
Summary of fines:
Quarter Pending fine
30-Jun-20 4,55,000
30-Sep-20 4,60,000
31-Dec-20 4,60,000
Total 13,75,000
GST 2,47,500
Total 16,22,500

The Company had replied to the 
NSE via several letters/email 
vide Company letters dated 5th 
August, 2020, 2nd September, 
2020, 7th November, 2020, 9th 
December, 2020, 27th August, 
2021, 14th March, 2022, 8th April, 
2022 and several emails.
Further the Company has also 
submitted waiver request on 18th 
June, 2021 to NSE which was 
rejected (Application No. 1124).
Promoter shareholding is 
freezed by National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited due to 
said non compliance. 
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	 There was a delay in payment of Annual Listing Fees for financial year 2020-21 and 2021-22 to National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited due to shortage of funds led by non-operation of the Company.

c.	 Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

	 With the rapid expansion of business, various risks associated with the business have also increased considerably. 
Some such risks identified are the risk of fraud, misconduct and unethical behavior. To ensure fraud-free work 
and ethical environment, the Company has laid down a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy in line with the 
provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, by which the Company provides 
a platform to all the employees, vendors and customers to report any suspected or confirmed incident of fraud, 
misconduct, unethical behavior, etc. through any of the following reporting protocols:

	 Chairman of Audit Committee	 :	 Mr. Navin Nandu
	 E-mail	 :	 info@euromultivision.com
	 Phone No.	 :	 +91-022-40364036
	 Fax Number	 :	 +91-022 40364037
	 Written Communication to 	 :	� F/12, Ground Floor, Sangam Arcade, Vallabhbhai Road, Vile Parle 

(West), Mumbai, Maharashtra 400056.

	 The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the 
mechanism and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee is also available in exceptional cases. Vigil 
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy is also available on the website of the Company at http://www.euromultivision.
com/photovoltaic/images/pdf/vigil-mechanism-policy.pdf

d.	 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements

	 The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements as per the provisions under Regulation 27 of the 
Listing Regulations. The Company has also complied with the requirements of Part C (Corporate Governance 
Report) of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

	 The Company has complied with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 except as 
mentioned below:

	 1. 	 Non- appointment of Company Secretary as Compliance Officer pursuant to Regulation 6 of the Listing 
Regulations w.e.f. 28th June, 2020.

		  The Company has also complied with the requirements of clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation 2 of Regulation 
46 of the Listing Regulations and necessary disclosures thereof have been made in this report.

		  The details of the discretionary requirements under Regulation 27 and Part E of Schedule II of the Listing 
Requirements is provided below:

		  a.	 The Board: The Chairman of the Company is also the Whole-time Director.

		  b.	 Shareholders rights: Unaudited/ Audited Quarterly/ half yearly/ annual financial results are published in 
leading newspapers, viz. The Business Line, Business Standard and vernacular newspaper i.e. Mumbai 
Lakshadeep and also made available on the website of the Company at http://www.euromultivision.
com/photovoltaic/newspaper-advertisements.html.

		  c.	 Modified opinion in Audit Report: The Auditor’s Report is with modified opinion.

		  d.	 Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee.

e.	 A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice

	 A certificate received from M/s. Shivlal Maurya, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai is attached in this 
report stating that none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority.
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f.	 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement 
as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015:

	 During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutions placement.

g.	 Recommendation by Committee:
	 The Board has accepted all recommendations from all the committees of the Board, which is mandatorily 

required, during the financial year under review.

h.	 Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the

	 Statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

Sr. No Particulars Amount (in INR)
1 Statutory Audit Fees* 3,00,000
2 Other services for Taxation matters* 1,00,000

Total 4,00,000
	 * excludes applicable taxes thereon

i.	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Sr. No. Particulars No. of Complaints
1. Complaints filed during the financial year 0
2. Complaints disposed of during the financial year 0
3. Complaints pending as on end of the financial year 0

j.	 Subsidiary Companies:

	 As on 31st March, 2022, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Companies.

k.	 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 5th July, 2016, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd 
AS") which is applicable w.e.f 1st April, 2017 and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

l.	 Disclosure of Risk management 

	 The Company has framed the risk assessment and minimization procedure, which is periodically reviewed by the 
Audit Committee and the Board. 

m.	 Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account

	 The Company does not have any of its securities lying in demat/unclaimed suspense account arising out of public/
bonus /right issues as at 31st March, 2022. Hence, the particulars relating to aggregate number of shareholders 
and the outstanding securities in suspense account and other related matters does not arise.

n.	 CEO / CFO Certification 

	 In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, Mr. Hitesh Shah, Chairman and Whole Time Director and Mr. 
Uday Thoria, CFO of the Company have submitted a Certificate to the Board of Directors in the prescribed format in 
respect of financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and said Certificate is annexed to this report.

o.	 Auditors’ Certificate on compliance with the provisions relating to Corporate Governance

	 Auditors’ Certificate on compliance of conditions of the Listing Regulations relating to Corporate Governance by 
the Company is annexed to this Report.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members,
Euro Multivision Limited
Mumbai

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from Euro Multivision 
Limited having CIN L32300MH2004PLC145995 and having registered office at F 12, ground floor, Sangam Arcade, 
Vallabhbhai Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai-400056, Maharashtra, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the financial year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Directors DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Hitesh Shah 00043059 18-07-2016

2 Navin Nandu 07114744 30-09-2016

3 Lata Mehta 02027592 30-09-2016

4 Margen Gada 05340444 30-09-2016

5 Amit Nandu 06791050 31-03-2021

6 Seema Shaikh 08401333 31-03-2021

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th August, 2022

For Shivlal Maurya & Co.
Company Secretaries

UDIN: A037655D000773412

Shivlal Maurya
 M. No. ACS 37655 C.P. No. 14053
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT:

I, Hitesh Shah, Chairman and Whole Time Director of the Company hereby confirm that the Company has adopted 
Code of Conduct for all the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company and all have 
affirmed their adherence to the code during the financial year 2021-22. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Euro Multivision Limited 

Place: Mumbai	 Hitesh Shah
Date: 10th August, 2022	 Chairman & Whole Time Director 
	 DIN: 00043059 

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(8) THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Board of Directors
Euro Multivision Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Whole-time Director and Chief Financial Officer of Euro Multivision 
Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

1.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and that 
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

	 i.	 these statements do not contain any materiality untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

	 ii.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and 
we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we 
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

4.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee

	 i.	 significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 ii.	 significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements; and

	 iii.	 instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Euro Multivision Limited

	 Hitesh Shah	 Uday Thoria
Place: Mumbai	 Whole-time Director	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: 25th May, 2022	 DIN: 00043059	 PAN: AFJPT7963F
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Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance of the Corporate Governance
To,
The Members of
Euro Multivision Limited

We have examined the records concerning compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by EURO 
MULTIVISION LIMITED for the year ended 31st March, 2022, under Regulation 15(2) read with Schedule V Part E 
of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 (hereinafter together referred to as “the 
Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us and the representations made by management 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations except as stated below:

i.	 Non-appointment of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer pursuant to Regulation 6 of the Listing Regulation;

ii.	 The trading in shares of the Company are suspended on both the Stock Exchanges viz:. National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited and BSE Limited due to non-payment of annual listing fees (ALF)

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S.S. Singhvi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 114980W
UDIN: 22164582AOSFCN1731

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Partner

Membership Number: 164582

Place: Surat
Date: 10th August, 2022



EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED Annual Report 2021-22

57

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To 
The Members of Euro Multivision Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Euro Multivision Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Our audit opinion is Qualified for the following matters:

(a)	 The Company has been continuously incurring substantial losses since past few years. The Company’s 
current liabilities exceed its current assets and further the net worth of the Company has been fully 
eroded, these events indicate a material uncertainty that casts a significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge 
its liabilities in the normal course of business. The financial statements do not disclose the fact that the 
fundamental accounting assumption of going concern has not been followed.

(b)	 We draw attention towards the fact that the Company’s financial facilities/arrangements including Term 
Loans, Working Capital Facilities and Non Fund Based Credit Facilities have expired and the accounts 
with the Banks have turned into Non Performing Assets. 

	 The Company is unable to renegotiate, restructure or obtain replacement of financing arrangements and 
the banks have initiated legal proceedings for the recovery from the Company u/s. 19 of the Debt Recovery 
Tribunal (DRT), u/s. 13(2) of the Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of 
Security (Second) Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 2002. 

	 The Company has not provided for interest on its banking credit facilities amounting to Rs. 9767.65 
lakhs, for the year ended March 31, 2022. Had the same been accounted for; the net loss (after tax) for the 
year ended March 31, 2022, would have increased by Rs. 9767.65 lakhs. Total amount which the Company 
has not recorded cumulatively upto March 31, 2022 amounted to Rs.63,541.20 lakhs.

(c)	 On November 27, 2019, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed, wherein it has been directed 
to the Company to clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period 
of 2 months from the date of order, failing which the Bank will be entitled to sell the hypothecated 
assets, mortgage properties and other personal movable and immovable properties of the Company and 
guarantors. The Company received a letter dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable 
properties on 19-Apr-22. No communication has been received from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other 
authority with respect to the same till the date of this report. Also, no action has been taken by the 
Company till the date of this report and consequential impact is unascertainable.

	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with The Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency 
and Resolution Process (CIRP), which is pending for final hearing at NCLT. The consequential impact is 
unascertainable.

(d)	 Attention is also drawn to the fact that the Company has not provided for impairment or diminishing 
value of its assets/investment as per ‘Ind AS 36 –Impairment of Assets’ as notified under Section 133 of 
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the Companies Act, 2013. The effect of such Impairment or diminishing value has not been quantified by 
the management and hence the same is not ascertainable.

(e)	 We also draw attention to the fact of non-receipt of confirmations of balances from the Sundry Debtors, 
Deposit Accounts, Unsecured Loans, Loans & Advances, Investments, Banks, Sundry Creditors and 
other liabilities. Pending receipt of confirmation of these balances and consequential reconciliations / 
adjustments, if any, the resultant impact on the financial statements is not ascertainable.

(f)	 We draw attention to the fact towards the non-ascertainment of complete particulars of dues to Micro, Small 
and Medium enterprises, if any under MSMED Act, 2006, and provisions towards interest, if any, at this stage 
which is not in conformity with ‘Ind AS 37-Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.

(g)	 Attention is drawn, regarding the fact that the Company for its Optical Disc's manufacturing unit, had 
imported various Capital Goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG), of the 
Government of India, through various licenses, at concessional rates of Custom Duty on an undertaking 
to fulfill quantified exports within a period of eight years from the date of issue of respective licenses. 
The Custom Duties so saved amounted to Rs. 2,538.56 lakhs and the corresponding Export obligation to 
be fulfilled amounted to Rs. 20,308.50 lakhs, however as on March 31, 2022, the Export obligation yet to 
be fulfilled amounted to Rs. 19,121.60 lakhs. The stipulated period of 8 years to fulfill Export obligation 
has already expired and the company is required to pay the said saved Custom Duty together with 
interest @ 15% p.a. but the same has not been provided in books of accounts by the Company and the 
final liability is presently unascertainable

(h)	 Attention is drawn to the fact that, the Company Secretary had resigned from the Company and the 
Company has not appointed any other person and the position stands vacant till the date of our report 
and therefore the company is not in compliance with Regulation 6 of LODR which requires Company 
Secretary to be appointed as Compliance Officer.

(i)	 Attention is also drawn, to the fact that, the Company's Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit which 
is located in self-owned sector specific Special Economic Zone (SEZ). According to the SEZ Rules 2006, 
the units should have positive Net Foreign Exchange Earnings (NFE), which shall be calculated as per 
applicable rules in cumulative blocks of five years, starting from the commencement of production. The 
company could not achieve positive Net Foreign Exchange Earnings in the first block of five years, hence 
the Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) has imposed a penalty of Rs. 2,500.00 lakhs under Rule 54 
of the SEZ Rules 2006, and the same has not been provided in books of accounts by the Company. 

(j)	 We also draw attention towards the fact that, in respect of deposits accepted by the company before the 
commencement of this Act, within the meaning of section 74 & 75 of the Act and the Rules framed there 
under, the principal amount of such deposits and interest due thereon remained unpaid even after expiry 
of one year from such commencement and the Company had not filed a statement within a period of 
three months from such commencement or from the date on which such payments, were due, with the 
Registrar, details as prescribed u/s.74(1)(a). Further no application has been made for extension of time 
with the National Company Law Tribunal u/s. 74(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in this regards.

	 Further, the Company has deposits in contravention to Section 73 read with Section 76 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

(k)	 We also draw your attention towards overdue receivables aggregating to Rs. 41.16 lakhs as on March 31, 
2022, towards sale of goods included under “Trade Receivables” owed to the Company by its Foreign 
Customers due for more than 6 months as on March 31, 2022. These balances have not been settled till 
March 31, 2022. The Company is yet to make an application to the authorized dealer or Reserve Bank of 
India (RBI) for overdue receivable balances beyond the prescribed time limits in accordance with Foreign 
Exchange Management Act (FEMA). Any penalties that may be levied by RBI are presently not known and 
not given effect to in the IND AS financial statements.

Also, of the total amount receivable, as disclosed in the financial statement, amounting to Rs. 65.18 lakhs, provisions 
for doubtful debts have been created at Rs. 64.42 lakhs. The allowance for bad and doubtful debts have been made 
based on the estimates and best possible judgement of the Company. 
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The Expected Credit Loss Method as required under Ind AS 109, has not been followed while making provision 
for doubtful debts. Based on the above, we are unable to comment over the recoverability of trade receivables, 
provisioning and its overall impact on the financial results.

(l)	 We draw attention towards amounts aggregating to Rs. 37.91 lakhs disclosed under Trade Payables, in 
respect of purchase of raw materials, spares and consumables from entities outside India, which are 
outstanding for more than 6 months, which is not in compliance with the Regulations / Guidelines of 
the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. Any penalties that may be levied by the Reserve Bank of 
India and/or any changes to the disclosure of the amounts in the financial results in this regard are not 
presently ascertainable.

(m)	 The Company has borrowings, which are repayable on demand, classified under Non-Current Financial 
Liabilities, which are borrowed from various related parties and other lenders, the repayment terms of 
which have not been agreed between the Company and the lenders. The Company has not fair valued 
such sums received in accordance with the provisions of ‘Ind AS – 109 – Financial Instrument’ and ‘Ind 
AS – 113 – Fair Value Measurement’. The impact has not been quantified by the management and hence 
the same is unascertainable.

(n)	 The Company has not obtained actuarial valuation report and had not made any provision for Gratuity 
and Leave Encashment for the year. The impact of such non-provisioning of liability is unascertainable 
on the financial statements accordingly relevant disclosures as required under Ind AS – 15, Employees 
Benefit have not been given.

(o)	 The Company has on the basis of their internal evaluation, valued inventories at Rs. 16.67 lakhs. In 
the absence of valuation report or other documentary evidences confirming net realizable value of 
inventories, we are unable to comment on realization value of the inventories.

(p)	 The Company has Gratuity liability payable to the employees amounting to Rs. 32.93 lakhs, which are 
long outstanding. No interest has been provided by the Company over the same during the preparation 
of financial statements. The effect of such treatment has not been quantified by the management and 
hence the same is not ascertainable.

(q)	 The system of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with regards to the Company were not 
made available to us to determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial control 
over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. Refer to our separate report on 
Internal Financial Controls “Annexure – B to Independent Auditor Report”, where we have disclaimed our 
opinion.

(r)	 The Company has TDS demand outstanding amounting to Rs. 2.19 lakhs, pertaining to the previous 
financial years. The Company is in the process of ascertaining the liabilities and rectifying such returns, 
wherever required. No adjustment has been made for the said sums in the financial statements.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidences which we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
i) Evaluation of Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company has material uncertain 
tax positions in direct as well as indirect 
laws including matters under dispute 
which involves significant judgement to 
determine the possible outcome of the 
disputes.
(Refer Accounting Policies and Note – 
34 of the Financial Statements)

Our audit procedures includes:
•	 Obtained details of tax assessments from management and 

positions of legal and disputed matters.
•	 We assessed the management’s underlying assumptions in 

relation to estimating the probable cash outflow and possible 
outcome of the disputed matters lying with the tax authorities. 

•	 Discussed with tax consultants of the management about the 
implications and possibilities of outcome of various litigation 
matters.

•	 Reviewed the disclosures of the litigation matters and impact on 
the financial statements.

•	 Considered the effect of new information in respect of uncertain 
tax positions as at April 1, 2022 to evaluate whether any change 
was required to management’s position on the uncertainty.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual 
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind 
AS”) specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibility for Audit of Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
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individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
	 (a) 	 We have sought and except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion 

paragraph above, and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 (b) 	 Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our 
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
examination of those books;

	 (c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;
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	 (d) 	 Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with Rules issued thereunder;

	 (e)	 The matters described in the ‘Basis of Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above, in our opinion may have an adverse 
effect on the functioning of the Company;

	 (f) 	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

	 (g) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” dated May 25, 2022 where 
we have disclaimed our opinion; 

	 (h) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration 
is paid by the Company to its directors during the year and hence disclosure with respect to provisions of section 
197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

	 (i) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
		  Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and 

belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:
		  i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022 on its financial position 

in its financial statements;
		  ii. 	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2022; and
		  iii. 	 There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company during the year ended March 31, 2022; and
		  iv. 	 a) 	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kinds of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

			   b) 	 The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and its belief, no funds have been 
received by the company from any person(s) or entities including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) 
with the understanding that such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate 
beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

			   c) 	 Based on audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that representations under sub 
clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

		  v. 	 The Company has neither paid nor declared any dividend during the year.
2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For S.S. Singhvi & Associates
Firm Registration Number: 114980W

Chartered Accountants

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Place: Surat		  Partner
Date: 25th May, 2022	 Membership Number: 164582
	 UDIN : 22164582ANMBUA1056
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Annexure - ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
The Annexure ‘A’ referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements of Euro Multivision Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report that:
i.	 (a) 	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 

of its fixed assets.
		  (B)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, of its intangible assets.
	 (b)	 The property, plant and equipment covering significant value were physically verified during the year by the management 

at such intervals which in our opinion, provides for the physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at 
reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we report that, the title 
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date.

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use of assets) or intangible asset 
of both during the financial year; 

	 (e)	 No proceedings against the Company have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Therefore the 
provisions of Clause (i) (e) of Paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

ii.	 (a) 	 In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year 
and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

	 (b)	 The Company has working capital limits which were sanctioned in the earlier financial years, from banks, which were 
exceeding five crore rupees on the security of current assets of the Company. No quarterly returns / statements have 
been filed by the Company during the year with such banks. Also, The Company has defaulted in the repayment of 
such facilities, which has been mentioned in our audit report of the even date. 

iii.	 According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made investments, provided security or 
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has neither granted any 
loans nor provided any guarantees nor any securities in respect of any loans to any party covered under section 185 
or section 186 of the Act.

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company during the year has not 
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73 & 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there 
under to the extent notified. However in respect of deposits accepted by the company before the commencement of 
this Act, within the meaning of section 74 & 75 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified, the 
principal amount of such deposits and interest due thereon remained unpaid even after expiry of one year from such 
commencement and the Company had not filed a statement within a period of three months from such commencement 
or from the date on which such payments, were due, with the Registrar details as prescribed u/s.74(1)(a). Further no 
application has been made for extension of time with the National Company Law Tribunal u/s.74 (2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in this regards.

vi.	 The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in 
respect of Company’s products. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

vii.	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in 
our opinion the Company has been facing liquidity stress since past few years due to which there were delays in 
depositing various undisputed statutory dues with appropriate authorities including income tax, duty of customs, 
goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable. There were delays in depositing 
professional tax with the authorities amounting to Rs. 0.07 lakhs as on the year ending. No other statutory dues 
was outstanding as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the 
date they become payable, except for professional tax.
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	 (b)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there 
are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, as at March 31, 2022, which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute, except the following: 

Sr. 
No.

Dispute Pending Under Year of Dispute Authority Where Dispute 
Is Pending 

Amount Disputed 
(Rs. In Lakhs)

1. Rule 54 of SEZ Rules 2006 Block of 5 years 
from 2010 - 2015

The Hon’ble Secretary, 
Ministry of Commerce, 
New Delhi

2500.00

2. Foreign Trade Policy 2004-2009 2004-2007 DGFT, New Delhi 2538.56

3. Income Tax Act, 1961 AY 2009-10 Assessing Officer 34.50

4. Income Tax Act, 1961 AY 2012-13 Assessing Officer 43.08

viii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted in the 
books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of the 
Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of account. 
Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix.	 (a) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has defaulted in 
repayment of loans and interest’s dues to the banks. The bank lenders have initiated legal proceedings against 
the Company for recovery of their respective debts at the Debt Recovery Tribunal and have taken symbolic 
possession of the securities u/s. 13(4) of the SARFAESI Act, 2002.

Name of the Bank Principal Outstanding
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Interest Outstanding
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Default since

State Bank of India 12391.62 41746.64 April 2011

The Cosmos Co-Op Bank Ltd 7915.88 21794.55  January 2011

Total 20307.50 63541.19

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that 
the company has been declared wilful defaulter by lender banks.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, no loans have 
been obtained during the year, therefore reporting under Clause 3 (ix) (c) of the order is not applicable. However, 
the Company had obtained Term loans, Working Capital and other facilities which are currently under default and 
not repaid by the Company. On enquiry from the management, they have confirmed that the funds were obtained 
during the earlier years and were applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, no loans have 
been obtained during the year, therefore reporting under Clause 3 (ix) (d) of the order is not applicable.

	 (e)	 The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under the clause 3 (ix) 
(e) and 3 (ix) (f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

x.	 (a)	 The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly or 
optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.	 (a) 	 During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company nor on the Company.

	 (b) 	 We have not come across of any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company during the course of audit 
of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022, accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)
(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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	 (c) 	 As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to company.

xii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

xiv.	 (a)	 The Company has internal audit system in place which commensurate with the size of business and nature of its 
business.

	 (b)	 The report of internal auditor were considered by the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
xv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its Directors and hence provisions 
of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	 The company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and 
hence reporting under clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without 
any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 
(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

	 (c)	 The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of 
India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

	 (d)	 The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) 
(d) of the order are not applicable to the company.

xvii.	 Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial 
year and in the immediately preceding financial year. The details of the same are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2022
(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Cash Loss 40.20 31.82

xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 
clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial ratios, ageing and 
expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that a material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report. The Company may not be capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. Also, we 
have qualified our opinion on the Going Concern Basis of the Company as the Company has been unable to meet its 
liabilities in the past and defaulted dues payable to its financial lenders.

xx.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable 
to the Company. Hence, the provisions of Clause 3 (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or 
Joint Venture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable

For S.S. Singhvi & Associates
Firm Registration Number: 114980W

Chartered Accountants

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Place: Surat		  Partner
Date: 25th May, 2022						      Membership Number: 164582
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Annexure – ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Euro Multivision 
Limited on standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Euro Multivision Limited (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on, the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the 
Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Because of the matter described in Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not established its internal 
financial control over financial reporting on criteria based on or considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, we 
are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion whether the Company 
had adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022. According we do not express an opinion on the Company’s internal control 
over financial reporting.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied 
in our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, and the disclaimer does 
not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

								      

For S.S. Singhvi & Associates
Firm Registration Number: 114980W

Chartered Accountants

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Place: Surat		  Partner
Date: 25th May, 2022						      Membership Number: 164582
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars Note No. As at 
March, 31 2022

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at 
March, 31 2021

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
ASSETS
NON- CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 4,975.39 6,177.58 
Other Intangible Assets 3 0.04 0.04 
FINANCIAL ASSETS
(i)	 Investments 4 5.33 5.33 
(ii)	 Other Financial Assets 5 146.35 146.35 
Other Non Current Assets 6 7.77 4.48 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 5,134.87 6,333.77 
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 7 16.67 17.18 
FINANCIAL ASSETS
(i)	 Trade Receivables 8 0.76 80.35 
(ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 9 0.61 0.65 
(iii)	 Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 10 1.26 5.04 
(iv)	 Other Financial Assets 11 384.12 438.91 
Other Current Assets 12 26.52 18.12 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 429.94 560.25 
TOTAL ASSETS 5,564.81 6,894.02 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a)	 Equity Share Capital 13 2,380.00 2,380.00 
(b)	 Other Equity 14 (38,028.79) (36,802.66)
TOTAL EQUITY (35,648.79) (34,422.66)
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(i)	 Borrowings 15         7,751.70         7,764.40 
(ii)	 Other Financial liabilities 16        33,349.78        33,349.78 
(iii)	 Trade Payables 17          78.18           82.70 
Other Current Liabilities 18           1.00           86.87 
Provisions 19          32.93           32.93 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES        41,213.60        41,316.68 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES         5,564.81         6,894.02 
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial 
Statements forming part of the financial statements

1

In terms of our report attached
For S.S. SINGHVI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 114980W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Partner
Membership Number: 164582 

Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00043059

Uday Thoria
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Surat
Date: May 25, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2022
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars Note No. For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products and Services 20 0.10 3.20 
Other income 21 38.17 95.49 
TOTAL INCOME 38.27 98.69 
EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials consumed 22 0.44 0.03 
Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 23 0.06 15.15 
Employees benefit expense 24 7.62 10.72 
Depreciation & Amortization expense 2 1,202.19 1,380.96 
Other expenses 25 66.74 87.48 
Finance cost 26 0.09 0.76 
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,277.15 1,495.11 
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (1,238.87) (1,396.41)
Exceptional Items  -  - 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1,238.87) (1,396.41)
TAX EXPENSE
(1)	 Current Tax / Earlier Years Tax  (12.75)  12.42 
(2)	 Deferred Tax  -  - 
Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations  (1,226.13)  (1,408.84)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations  -  - 
Tax expense of discontinued operations  -  - 
Profit (Loss) for the period from discontinued operations (After Tax)  -  - 
Profit/(loss) for the period  (1,226.13)  (1,408.84)
Other Comprehensive Income
A	 (i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
		  - Actuarial gains / losses  -  - 
	 (ii)	� Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss
 -  - 

B	 (i)	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 
	 (ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss
 -  - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1,226.13)  (1,408.84)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation) :
(1)	 Basic  (5.15)  (5.92)
(2)	 Diluted  (5.15)  (5.92)
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation) :
(1)	 Basic  -  - 
(2)	 Diluted  -  - 
Earnings per equity share(for discontinued & continuing operations)
(1)	 Basic  (5.15)  (5.92)
(2)	 Diluted  (5.15)  (5.92)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements 
forming part of the financial statements

1

In terms of our report attached
For S.S. SINGHVI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 114980W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Partner
Membership Number: 164582 

Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00043059

Uday Thoria
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Surat
Date: May 25, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2022
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)

As at  
March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)
Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items  (1,226.13)  (1,408.84)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation  1,202.19  1,380.96 
Interest Expense  0.09  0.76 
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets  -  0.35 
Other Income  (3.71)  (10.96)
Other Comprehensive Income  -  - 
Operating profit before working capital changes  (27.56)  (37.73)
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (Increase) Trade & other receivables  79.59  (78.63)
Decrease / (Increase) Inventories  0.51  12.15 
Decrease / (Increase) Other Current Assets  47.11  12.16 
Increase / (Decrease) Trade Payables and Current Liabilities  (91.38)  87.40 
Cash generated from operations  8.26  (4.66)
Direct tax  -  - 
Cash flow before exceptional items  8.26  (4.66)
Exceptional items  -  - 
Net cash from operating activities  8.26  (4.66)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets  -  - 
Sale / Disposal of fixed assets  - 0.25 
Net cash used in investing activities  - 0.25 
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of Borrowings  (12.70)  (5.00)
Finance Cost  (0.09)  (0.76)
Other Income  3.71  10.96 
Net cash used in financing activities  (9.08)  4.20 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  (0.82)  (0.21)
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 149.04 149.25 
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the end of the year * 148.22 149.04 
* Comprises:
(a)	 Cash on hand  0.61  0.65 
(b)	 Cheques, drafts on hand  -  - 
(c)	 Balances with banks  -  - 
	 (i)	 In current accounts 1.07 4.85 
	 (ii)	 In EEFC accounts 0.19 0.19 
	 (iii)	 In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months  -  - 
	 (iv)	 In earmarked accounts  -  - 
(d)	 Others - Fixed Deposits kept as Margin Money 146.35 146.35 

148.22 152.04 

1.	 The above Cash Flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian 
Accounting Standard '7' on "Statement of Cash Flows". 

2.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-arranged wherever necessary.

In terms of our report attached
For S.S. SINGHVI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 114980W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Partner
Membership Number: 164582 

Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00043059

Uday Thoria
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Surat
Date: May 25, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A. 	 Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number of Shares (Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each issued, subscribed and paid
Balance as on 01 Apr 2020 23,800,049 2,380.00 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -  - 

Balance as at 31 Mar 2021  23,800,049  2,380.00 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -  - 

Balance as at 31 Mar 2022  23,800,049  2,380.00 

B. 	 Other Equity
(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

Total equity 
attributable to 
Equity HoldersRetained 

Earnings
Securities 
Premium 
Account

Employee 
Related 

Provisioning

Equity 
Instrument 
designated 

at Fair Value 
through OCI

Balance as on April 1, 2020  (41,088.50)  5,720.03  (29.69)  4.33  (35,393.83)

Profit / (Loss) for the year 2020-21  (1,408.84)  -  -  -  (1,408.84)

Transfer to General Reserve  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  -  -  - 

Balance as on 31 March, 2021  (42,497.34)  5,720.03  (29.69)  4.33  (36,802.66)

Profit / (Loss) for the year 2021-22  (1,226.13)  -  -  -  (1,226.13)

Transfer to General Reserve  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  -  -  - 

Balance as on 31 March, 2022  (43,723.46)  5,720.03  (29.69)  4.33  (38,028.79)

In terms of our report attached
For S.S. SINGHVI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 114980W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Partner
Membership Number: 164582 

Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00043059

Uday Thoria
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Surat
Date: May 25, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2022
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note - 1

(A)	 Corporate Information

	 Euro Multivision Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 
April 29, 2004. Equity shares of the Company are listed in India on the Bombay stock exchange (BSE) and the 
National stock exchange (NSE). The Company is into manufacturing of Optical Discs and Solar Photovoltaic 
Cells and has imported from Netherlands state of art plants installed at Bhachau, Kutch, Gujarat. The registered 
office of the Company is situated at F 12, Sangam Arcade, Ground Floor, Vallabhbhai Road, Vile Parle (West), 
Mumbai 400056.

(B)	 Significant Accounting Policies

	 (I)	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

		  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended from time to time.

		  The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies 
are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have 
been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as 
set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, 
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

		  The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the 
financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates (the ‘functional currency’).

		  The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved for issue in 
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on May 25, 2022.

	 (II)	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

		  (a) 	 Current versus Non-Current Classification

			   The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification.

			   An asset/liability is treated as current when it is:

			   • 	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal operating cycle

			   • 	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

			   • 	 Expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

			   • 	� Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period.

			   • 	� There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period.

			   All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

			   The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle, as explained in Schedule 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

III of the Companies Act, 2013, as twelve months, having regard to the nature of business being carried 
out by the Company. The same has been considered for classifying assets and liabilities as ‘current’ 
and ‘non-current’ while preparing the financial statements.

		  (b) 	 Property, plant and equipment

		  	 (i) 	 Tangible Assets

				    Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

				    When significant parts of property, plant and equipment (identified individually as component) are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes 
the new part with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. Whenever major 
inspection/overhaul/repair is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of respective 
assets as a replacement, if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

				    The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included 
in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

				    Property, plant and equipments are eliminated from financial statements, either on disposal or 
when retired from active use. Losses/gains arising in case retirement/disposals of property, plant 
and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

				    Depreciation on property, plant and equipments are provided to the extent of depreciable amount 
on the straight line (SLM) Method. Depreciation is provided at the rates and in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

				    The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation/amortization of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

			   (ii) 	 Intangible Assets

				    Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization.

				    Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and method for an intangible asset is reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting period.

		  (c) 	 Borrowing Costs

			   Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which 
they occur.

		  (d) 	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

			   The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

			   Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including 
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

			   During the current year, the Company has not made any such assessment in relation to the Non-
Financial Assets.

		  (e) 	 Inventories

			   Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores and spares, stock-in-trade, 
trading and other products are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials 
and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished 
goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

			   In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores and spares, trading 
and other products, weighted average cost method is used. Cost of inventory comprises all costs of 
purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

			   Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an 
appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads, duties and taxes as applicable and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

		  (f) 	 Revenue Recognition

			   Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction flows 
to the Company in the ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Company.

			   Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits, received and receivable by the Company, 
on its own account. Amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as goods and service tax are 
excluded from revenue.

		  (g) 	 Foreign Currency Transactions

			   Initial recognition:

			   On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded 
in the functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot 
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date:

			   Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-
monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

			   Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

		  (h) 	 Taxes on Income

			   Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in 
respect of current tax and deferred tax.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

			   Current Tax:

			   Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid/ recovered to/from the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date.

			   Deferred Tax:

			   Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

			   Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

			   The Company has not provided for Deferred Tax Liability / Assets in accordance with Ind AS-12 
(Deferred Taxes) as the Company has accumulated brought forward business losses and depreciation 
under the Income Tax Act. Also, the Management expects no probability of having taxable profits in near 
future against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised and therefore expects no cash 
outflow in relation to taxes.

		  (i) 	 Employee Benefits

			   Short Term Employee Benefits:

			   All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting 
any amount already paid.

			   Post-Employment Benefits:

			   I. 	 Defined contribution plans:

				    The Company makes payments to defined contribution plans such as provident fund. The Company 
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee 
benefit expense when they are due.

			   II. 	 Defined benefit plans:

				    The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair 
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the 
net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included 
in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

				    Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.

				    Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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				    Other Long-Term Employee Benefits:

				    Other long-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss as and when they accrue. The Company determines the liability using the Projected Unit 
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations carried out as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains 
and losses in respect of such benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

				    The Company did not obtain actuarial report and had not made any provision for Gratuity and 
Leave Encashment for the year.

		  (j) 	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

			   Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

			   If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

			   Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

			   • 	 a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation;

			   • 	 a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

			   Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

		  (k) 	 Earnings Per Share

			   Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

			   For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average numbers of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity share.

		  (l) 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

			   Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

			   For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above.

		  (m) 	Financial Instruments

			   A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

			   - 	 Financial Assets :

				    Classification

				    The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business 
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the 
financial asset.
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	 			   Initial recognition and measurement

				    All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset.

	 			   Subsequent measurement

				    For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in below categories:

				    • 	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

					�     A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

				    • 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

					�     A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in 
fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

				    • 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

					�     A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair 
valued through profit or loss.

					     Derecognition

					�     A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset.

					     Impairment of financial assets

					�     The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss, the calculation of which is based on historical 
data, on the financial assets that are trade receivables or contract revenue receivables and all 
lease receivables.

				    - 	 Financial Liabilities :

					     Classification

					�     The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost, 
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including 
derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

					     Initial recognition and measurement

					�     All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s 
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.
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					     Subsequent measurement

					     The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

					     • 	 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

						�      After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and 
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as 
through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

					     • 	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

						�      Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative 
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss.

					     • 	 Derecognition

						�      A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

	 			    	 - 	 Offsetting of Financial Instruments :

						�      Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 
the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously

		  (n) 	 Fair Value Measurements

			   The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

			   All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

			   • 	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

			   • 	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

			   • 	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

			   For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
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categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

			   For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above.

		  (o) 	 Unless specifically stated to be otherwise, these policies are consistently followed.

			   Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

			   The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on 
management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 
affected in future periods.

			   In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates 
and assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact 
the various accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial 
statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

		  	 Contingencies

			   Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the 
Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will 
be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of 
the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant 
judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

		  	 Estimates and assumptions

			   The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due 
to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

			   (a) 	 Impairment of non-financial assets			 

			   (b) 	 Defined benefit plans			 

			   (c) 	 Fair value measurement of financial instruments			 

			   (d) 	 Impairment of financial assets					   
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Note - 3 Intangible Assets	  (Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Patents and 
Trade Marks

Patents 
Licence 

Fees

Technical 
Know How

Copyrights Total

Gross Carrying Amount (At Deemed Cost)
As at April 1, 2020 3.29 4.90 2.45 1.75 12.38 
Additions  -  -  -  -  - 
Disposal  -  -  -  -  - 
At March 31, 2021 3.29 4.90 2.45 1.75 12.38 
Additions  -  -  -  - 
Disposal  -  -  -  -  - 
At March 31, 2022 3.29 4.90 2.45 1.75 12.38 
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020 3.25 4.90 2.45 1.75 12.35 
Depreciation Charge  -  -  -  -  - 
Accumulated depreciation on disposals  -  -  -  -  - 
At March 31, 2021 3.25 4.90 2.45 1.75 12.35 
Depreciation Charge  -  -  -  -  - 
Accumulated depreciation on disposals  -  -  -  -  - 
At March 31, 2022 3.25 4.90 2.45 1.75 12.35 
Net Book Value
As at March 31, 2021 0.04  -  -  - 0.04 
As at March 31, 2022 0.04  -  -  - 0.04 

Note - 4 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Non-trade and unquoted:
Investment in equity instruments

1000 Equity shares of face value Rs.100 each of Cosmos Co-op. Bank 
Limited

 5.33  5.33 

Total  5.33  5.33 

Note - 5

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed deposit against LC margin money  146.35  146.35 

Total  146.35  146.35 
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Note - 6

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Income tax advances  7.77  4.48 

Total  7.77  4.48 

Note: Income Tax Advances as at year end, includes the amount of TDS receivable for periods, the assessment of which 
is pending.

Note - 7

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

INVENTORIES
(As Valued and Certified by Management, at cost or NRV whichever 
is lower)

Finished goods  0.64  0.65 

Raw materials  15.80  15.97 

Packing material  0.23  0.56 

Total  16.67  17.18 

The Company had written off the stock of raw material, packing material and stores and consumables which were expired 
and obsolete. The amount of such expired and obsolete material written off during the year ended March 31, 2022 was Rs. 
NIL (March 31, 2021 was Rs.8.11 lakhs)

Note - 8

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from 
the date they are due for payment

Secured, considered good  -  - 

Unsecured, considered good  0.76  71.45 

Total  0.76  71.45 

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from 
the date they are due for payment

Secured, considered good  -  - 

Unsecured, considered good  64.43  76.84 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  64.43  67.94 

Total  -  8.90 

Total of Trade Receivables  0.76  80.35 

Note: There are no trade receivables from related parties in the amounts mentioned above.
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Reconciliation of Credit Loss / Provision for Doubtful Debts

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

Balance at the beginning of the Year  67.94  84.30 

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss  1.48  - 

Excess Provision Written Back  (5.00)  (16.36)

Balance at the end of the Year  64.43  67.94 

Ageing of Trade Receivables

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

Unsecured, Undisputed, considered good

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment:

Less than 6 months  0.76  71.45 

6 months to 1 year  -  - 

1 year to 2 year  -  - 

2 year to 3 year  -  - 

More than 3 year  -  - 

Total  0.76  71.45 

Unsecured, Undisputed, considered doubtful

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment:

Less than 6 months  -  - 

6 months to 1 year  -  - 

1 year to 2 year  -  - 

2 year to 3 year  -  - 

More than 3 year  64.43  76.84 

Total  64.43  76.84 
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Note - 9

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand  0.61  0.65 

Total  0.61  0.65 

Note - 10

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Current accounts  1.07  4.85 

EEFC accounts  0.19  0.19 

Total  1.26  5.04 

Note - 11

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Deposits in Banks including accrued interest  374.02  372.92 

Deposits-Security Deposits for various faciltiies  7.85  63.38 

Interest accrued and receivable on security deposit  2.25  2.61 

Total  384.12  438.91 

Note: Deposits in Banks are against Bank Guarantee Margin for EPCG licenses

Note - 12

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Staff advances  3.35  3.36 

GST Receivable  22.44  13.58 

Advances to suppliers  0.34  0.49 

Other short term loans and advances  0.39  0.69 

Total  26.52  18.12 
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Note - 13
Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized
2,81,50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 2,815.00 2,815.00 
1,85,000 - 5 % Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 185.00 185.00 

3,000.00 3,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
2,38,00,049 equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- each 2,380.00 2,380.00 

2,380.00 2,380.00 

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding Equity 
Shares 

 Preference 
Shares 

Equity 
Shares 

Preference 
Shares 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year (in lakhs)  23,800,049  -  23,800,049  - 
Shares Issued during the year (in lakhs)  -  -  -  - 
Shares bought back during the year (in lakhs)  -  -  -  - 
Shares outstanding at the end of the year (in lakhs)  23,800,049  -  23,800,049  - 

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder 
holding more than 5 percent shares

 No. of 
Shares held 

 Percentage 
of Holding 

in that class 
of shares 

 No. of 
Shares held 

 Percentage 
of Holding in 
that class of 

shares 
Nenshi L Shah  5,008,627  21.04  5,008,627  21.04 
Rayshi L Shah  4,925,223  20.69  4,925,223  20.69 

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares				  
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. No Dividends were proposed by the Board of Directors for the financial 
year 2021-22 / 2020-2021. In the event of liquidation of the company, equity shareholders will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution shall be in proportion 
to the number of equity shares held by them.				  

Terms / Rights attached to Preference Shares				  
The Company has only one class of preference shares having a par value of Rs.100/- per share. No preference 
shares have been issued by the Company during the current year.

Disclosure of Shareholding pattern of Promoters in Equity
Name of Promoter Equity Shares held by Promoters

As at March 31, 2022
Equity Shares held by Promoters 

As at March 31, 2021
% Change 

in the 
shareholdingNo. of Shares % of Total 

Shares
No. of Shares % of Total 

Shares
Nenshi L Shah 5008627 21.04 5008627 21.04  - 
Rayshi L Shah 4925223 20.69 4925223 20.69  - 
Gunvantiben N Shah 500000 2.10 500000  2.10  - 
Shantilal Ladhabhai Shah 480000 2.02 480000  2.02  - 
Ladhabhai Sanganbhai Shah 150000 0.63 150000  0.63  - 
Shantaben Laljibhai Shah 50000 0.21 50000  0.21  - 
Shantilal Ladhabhai Shah 44000 0.18 44000  0.18  - 
Ankur Rayshi Shah 21383 0.09 21383  0.09  - 
Chirag Rayshi Shah 8330 0.04 8330  0.04  - 
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Note - 14
Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

RESERVES & SURPLUS
Securities Premium Reserve
Opening balance 5,720.03 5,720.03 

Add : Premium on shares issued during the year  -  - 

Less : Utilised during the year  -  - 

Closing balance 5,720.03 5,720.03 

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance  (42,497.34)  (41,088.50)

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year  (1,226.13)  (1,408.84)

Less: Appropriations  -  - 

Closing balance  (43,723.46)  (42,497.34)

Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain / Loss

Opening balance  (29.69)  (29.69)

Add: Item of OCI for the year, net of tax  -  - 

Closing balance  (29.69)  (29.69)

Equity Instrument designated at Fair Value
Opening balance  4.33  4.33 

Add: Equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

 -  - 

Less: Appropriations  -  - 

Closing balance  4.33  4.33 

Total  (38,028.79)  (36,802.66)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:

(i) 	 Securities Premium Reserve

	 Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) 	 General Reserve

	 General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation 
purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item 
of other comprehensive income.

(iii) 	Other Reserves

	 The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain assets / liabilities through OCI. These 
changes are accumulated within the OCI reserve within other equity. The Company transfers amounts from this 
reserve to retained earnings when the relevant assets are derecognised.
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Note - 15

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Cash Credit Facilities
 - The Cosmos Co-op Bank Ltd 3,038.70 3,038.70 
 - State Bank of India 3,197.36 3,197.36 
Loans & advances from related parties
From Directors / Promoters / Family members 532.69 545.39 
From Others 982.95 982.95 
Total 7,751.70 7,764.40 

• 	 Since financial year 2011-2012, the Company has been incurring significant losses which has resulted in erosion 
of its net worth. Consequently the Company had received summons/notice from the office of Debt Recovery 
Tribunal-II, Ahmedabad Gujarat in response of the application filed by State Bank of India Baroda Gujarat vide 
O.A. No. 56/2012 for the recovery of their loan under Section 19 of the Recovery of Debts due to Banks and 
Financial Institutions Act, 1993. On 27-Nov-19, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed, wherein it has 
been directed to the Company to clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within 
a period of 2 months from the date of order. The Company had taken no action against the said order of Debt 
Recovery Tribunal. The Company received a demand notice dated 20-Feb-2020 to clear the dues within 15 days, 
failing which recovery proceedings could be initiated against the Company.

	 The Company received a letter dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable properties on 19-Apr-22. 
No communication has been received from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other authority with respect to the same. 
Also, no action has been taken by the Company till the date of this report and consequential impact is unascertainable. 

	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with The Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP), which is pending for final hearing at NCLT.

• 	 The Company had received notices u/s 13(2) of Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of 
Security Interest Act, 2002 from The Cosmos Co-op Bank Ltd and State Bank of India for recovery of its outstanding 
dues towards various credit facilities extended to the Company from time to time. Further, State Bank of India has 
taken symbolic possession of the immovable property of Optical Disc and Solar Photovoltaic Cells Unit under the 
Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security (Second) Interest Act, 2002 and in 
exercise of the powers under Section 13(4) of the said Act read with rule 8 of the security Interest (Enforcement) rules 
2002.

• 	� In the financial year 2012-2013, the Company on the basis of the audited accounts for the financial year ended as 
on March 31, 2012, and being mandatory, had filed the reference U/s 15(1) of Sick Industrial Companies (Special 
Provisions) Act, 1985 before the Hon’ble Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction (BIFR). The above 
reference duly had been registered by the learned Registrar of Hon’ble BIFR. However, Ministry of Finance, vide 
notification dated November 25, 2016 had repealed the Sick Industrial (Special Provisions) Act 1985 (SICA) with 
effect from December 1, 2016. Accordingly, BIFR Board was dissolved from that date and National Company 
Law Tribunal (NCLT) was constituted under the Companies Act 2013, under the provisions of The Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Act 2016. 

• 	� Secured on pari-passu basis, by hypothecation and mortgage of current assets of the company i.e stocks of raw 
materials, stocks in process, finished goods, stores, spares, book debts etc. towards its Optical Disc Unit and 
Solar Cells Unit (in Special Economic Zone) at Bhachau, Kutch, Gujarat and by way of personal guarantees of 
erstwhile Promoters / Directors of the Company.

• 	� There is no specific repayment schedule which has been prescribed by the Lenders for the borrowing under the 
head Deposits and Loans and Advances from related parties.
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Note - 16

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Term loan - Cosmos Co - op Bank Ltd 4,587.81 4,587.81 
Term loan - State Bank of India 9,194.27 9,194.27 
Interest accrued & due on term loans 14,734.25 14,734.25 
Interest accrued & due on working capital 4,833.46 4,833.46 
Total 33,349.78 33,349.78 

• 	 Since financial year 2011-2012, the Company has been incurring significant losses which has resulted in erosion 
of its net worth. The global economic meltdown and steep fall in demand of Company’s products led to losses and 
thereby depleting working capital. In the course of time, it further resulted into default in the repayment of dues to 
banks including Term Loans, Cash Credit Accounts and also devolvement of letters of credit. 

• 	 Consequently the Company had received summons/notice from the office of Debt Recovery Tribunal-II, 
Ahmedabad Gujarat in response of the application filed by State Bank of India Baroda Gujarat vide O.A. No. 
56/2012 for the recovery of their loan under Section 19 of the Recovery of Debts due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions Act, 1993. On 27-Nov-19, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed, wherein it has been 
directed to the Company to clear dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period 
of 2 months from the date of order. The Company is yet to take action against the said order of Debt Recovery 
Tribunal. The Company received a demand notice dated 20-Feb-2020 to clear the dues within 15 days, failing 
which recovery proceedings could be initiated against the Company. 

• 	 The Company received a letter dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable properties on 19-
Apr-22. No communication has been received from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other authority with respect to 
the same. Also, no action has been taken by the Company till the date of this report and consequential impact is 
unascertainable. 

	 Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial lender with The Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP), which is pending for final hearing at NCLT.

• 	 The Company had received notices u/s 13(2) of Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement 
of Security Interest Act, 2002 from The Cosmos Co-op Bank Ltd and State Bank of India for recovery of its 
outstanding dues towards various credit facilities extended to the Company from time to time. Further, State Bank 
of India has taken symbolic possession of the immovable property of Optical Disc and Solar Photovoltaic Cells 
Unit under the Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security (Second) Interest 
Act, 2002 and in exercise of the powers under Section 13(4) of the said Act read with rule 8 of the security Interest 
(Enforcement) rules 2002.

• 	 In the financial year 2012-2013, the Company on the basis of the audited accounts for the financial year ended as 
on March 31, 2012, and being mandatory, had filed the reference U/s 15(1) of Sick Industrial Companies (Special 
Provisions) Act, 1985 before the Hon’ble Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction (BIFR). The above 
reference duly had been registered by the learned Registrar of Hon’ble BIFR. However, Ministry of Finance, vide 
notification dated November 25, 2016 had repealed the Sick Industrial (Special Provisions) Act 1985 (SICA) with 
effect from December 1, 2016. Accordingly, BIFR Board was dissolved from that date and National Company 
Law Tribunal (NCLT) was constituted under the Companies Act 2013, under the provisions of The Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Act 2016. 

• 	 In the light of above scenario, all term loans from banks are no longer treated as long term borrowings, but have 
been classified as Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings under Other Current Liabilities.

• 	 Term Loan from Banks are secured by hypothecation and mortgage of fixed assets of the Company situated at 
its Optical Disc Unit and Solar Cells Unit (in Special Economic Zone) at Bhachau, Kutch, Gujarat, and also by 
personal guarantees of erstwhile Promoters / Directors of the Company.
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Note - 17

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  -  - 
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises

78.18 82.70 

Total 78.18 82.70 

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises Ageing
Undisputed
 Less than 6 months  1.15  9.45 
 6 months - 1 year  3.79  - 
 1-2 years  -  - 
 2-3 years  -  - 
 More than 3 years  73.24  73.24 
Total Other than MSME  78.18  82.70 
Total  78.18  82.70 

Note - 18
Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
From Directors:
Advances Received for Payments / Expenses  - 85.38 
Statutory Dues Payable 0.06 0.23 
Other liabilities & provisions 0.94 1.26 
Total 1.00 86.87 

Note - 19
Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
 As at March 31, 2021 
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

PROVISIONS
Provision for Gratuity 32.93 32.93 
Total 32.93 32.93 
Note: The Company did not obtain actuarial valuation report for the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 as required by Ind AS for 
estimating liability of leave encashment and gratuity.
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Note - 20

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products
Finished goods  0.10  3.20 

Traded goods / Job Work  -  - 

Revenue from operations (net)  0.10  3.20 

Details of products sold
Finished goods sold
Optical discs  0.10 0.04 

Solar Photovoltaic  - 3.16 

Total  0.10 3.20 

Note - 21

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

OTHER INCOME
Commission Income  -  62.54 

Rental Income  2.51  1.91 

Scrap Sales  23.92  - 

Interest Recd./Accrued on Bank Deposit  1.21  8.14 

Interest Received on PGVCL Deposit  2.50  2.82 

Provision of Doubtful Debts Reversed  3.52  16.36 

Mobile Tower Rent & Electricity Consumption  4.11  3.71 

Profit on Sale of Assets  0.40  - 

Total  38.17  95.49 
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Note - 22

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Raw materials 15.92 15.92 
Packing materials 0.56 0.56 
Total 16.48 16.48 
Add : Purchases
Raw materials  -  - 
Packing materials  - 0.03 
Total  - 0.03 
Inventories at the end of the year
Raw materials 15.80 15.92 
Packing materials 0.23 0.56 
Total 16.04 16.48 
Cost of raw materials consumed 0.44 0.03 
Note:
The Company had written off the stock of raw material, packing material and stores and consumables which were 
expired and obsolete. The amount of such expired and obsolete material written off during the year ended March 
31, 2022 was Rs. NIL (March 31, 2021 was Rs.8.11 lakhs)

Note - 23

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 0.70 7.74 
Semi finished goods / WIP  - 8.11 
Total 0.70 15.85 
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods  0.64 0.70 
Semi finished goods / WIP  -  - 
Total  0.64 0.70 

 0.06 15.15 
Details of inventory
Finished goods
Optical discs  0.57 0.57 
Solar Photovoltaic  0.07 0.12 
Total  0.64 0.70 
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Note - 24

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSE
Salaries, Bonus and Leave Salary 7.37 10.43 
Staff welfare expenses 0.26 0.30 
Total 7.62 10.72 

Note - 25

Particulars  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
OTHER EXPENSE
Power & fuel 40.94 55.58 
Freight & Transport charges 0.25 0.26 
Labour charges  - 0.25 
Miscellaneous expenses 1.49 0.23 
Conveyance & travelling 0.16  - 
Fees & subscription 5.97 14.94 
Insurance charges  - 0.15 
Rates and taxes 1.72 1.25 
Repairs & maintenance
	 - Others 0.30 0.35 
Auditors remuneration 4.00 4.00 
Motor Vehicle expenses  - 0.03 
Postage & Telegram charges 0.03 0.03 
Printing & stationery 0.25 0.14 
Security expenses 8.71 8.39 
Telephone expenses 0.26 0.45 
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 2.35 0.79 
Rent 0.31 0.31 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  - 0.35 
Total 66.74 87.48 
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit fees  3.00  3.00 
Other services for Taxation matters  1.00  1.00 
Total  4.00  4.00 
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Note - 26
Particulars  For the year ended 

 March 31, 2022 
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

FINANCE COST
 Interest 0.01 0.28 

 Other finance charges 0.20 0.40 

 Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions (0.12) 0.09 

 Total 0.09 0.76 

Note: The Company has not provided for interest on banking credit facilities amounting to approximately Rs. 
9767.65 lakhs, for the year ended March 31, 2022. (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 8603.43 lakhs). This interest figure has 
been calculated on the interest rate prevailing as on the date of default, which is approximate. The figure is subject 
to reconciliation and settlement with the lenders.

Note - 27

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Directors (1)	 Mr.Hitesh Shah (2)	 Mr.Navin P Nandu (3)	 Mr.Margen V Gada

(4)	 Mrs.Lata T Mehta (5)	� Mr. Amit Nandu (w.e.f. 31-Mar-21) (6)�	 Seema Shaikh (w.e.f. 31-Mar-21)

Key Managerial Personnel (1)	 Mr.Uday Thoria (CFO w.e.f. 13-02-2018)   (2)	Mr. Abhishek Manchekar (Company Secretary, Upto 30-06-2020)

(b) Relatives of Directors/Key 
Managerial Personnel

(1)	 Shantilal L Shah  (2)	 Sonalben S Shah (3)	 Mrs.Manjari H Shah

(4)	 Hitesh S Shah - HUF  (5)	 Dhaval Shah - HUF (6)	 Dhaval S Shah

(7)	 Forum D Shah 

(c) Enterprise having common Key 
Management Personnel and/or 
their relatives as the Reporting 
Enterprises

(1)	 Gurukul Enterprises Private Limited (2)	 Disti Multimedia & Communications Pvt Ltd

(3)	 Lyons Technologies Ltd

Note : Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.
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(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)
Sr 
No.

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022 
 Total  Directors  Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

 Relatives of 
Directors / Key 

Manageral 
Personnel 

 Enterprise Having 
common Key 

Management Personnel 
and/or their relatives 

as the Reporting 
Enterprises 

(a) Remuneration of Key Managerial 
Personnel
Mr.Uday Thoria (CFO)  0.60  -  0.60  -  - 
Total  0.60  -  0.60  -  - 

(b) Loans and Advances Taken #
Directors
Mr.Hitesh Shah  532.69  532.69  -  -  - 
Associate Concerns
Gurukul Enterprises Private Limited  126.85  -  -  -  126.85 
Lyons Technologies Ltd  177.84  -  -  -  177.84 
Total  837.38  532.69  -  -  304.69 

 # Represents Closing Balances as at period end.

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)
Sr 
No.

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021 
 Total  Directors  Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

 Relatives of 
Directors / Key 

Manageral 
Personnel 

 Enterprise Having 
common Key Management 

Personnel and/or their 
relatives as the Reporting 

Enterprises 
(a) Remuneration of Key Managerial 

Personnel
Mr.Uday Thoria (CFO)  0.55  -  0.55  -  - 
Mr.Abhishek Manchekar (Company 
Secretary)

 0.75  0.75 

Total  1.30  -  1.30  -  - 
(b) Loans and Advances Taken #

Directors
Mr.Hitesh Shah  545.39  545.39  -  -  - 
Associate Concerns
Gurukul Enterprises Private Limited  126.85  -  -  -  126.85 
Lyons Tehnologies Ltd  177.84  -  -  -  177.84 
Total  850.08  545.39  -  -  304.69 

(c) Advances for Payment of 
Expenses and Liabilities #
Directors
Mr.Hitesh Shah  85.38  85.38  -  -  - 
Total  85.38  85.38  -  -  - 

 # Represents Closing Balances as at period end.
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Note - 28

Employee Benefit

The Company did not obtain actuarial valuation report for the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 as required by Ind AS 
for estimating liability of leave encashment and gratuity. The same has been estimated on a reasonable basis as 
determined by the management.

Note - 29

Disclosures in pursuant to IND AS-17 in respect of Operating Lease

Leases other than finance lease, are operating leases, and the leased assets are not recognised on the Company’s 
balance sheet. Payments under operating leases are recognised in Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease.

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

 Lease rentals recognized during the year  0.31  0.31 

 Lease obligations payable 

 - Within one year of the balance sheet date  0.31  0.31 

 - Due in a period between one year and five years  0.55  0.91 

 - Due after five years  -  - 

The Company has entered into a lease agreement towards occupying 
office.

Note - 30
Disclosures in pursuant to IND AS-108 in respect of segment reporting
Primary segments
 Particulars Optical Disc Unit Solar Photovoltaic Unit Total

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

 As at  
March 31, 2022 

 As at  
March 31, 2021 

 (a)	 Revenue 

	 External Sales  0.10  0.04  -  3.16  0.10  3.20 
 	 Commission Income  -  -  -  62.54  -  62.54 
 	 Total  0.10  0.04  -  65.70  0.10  65.74 
(b)	 Segment results (PBIT)  23.54  (160.89)  1,202.72  (1,251.12)  1,226.27  (1,412.01)
	� Less: Interest & financial charges  0.09  0.20  (0.18)  0.57  (0.09)  0.76 
	� Less: Unallocable expenses 

net of unallocable income 
 -  -  -  -  -  (16.36)

 	 Profit before tax  23.45  (161.08)  1,202.91  -  1,226.36  (1,396.41)
 	 Segment assets  2,447.88  2,494.59  3,163.43  4,451.64  5,611.31  6,946.22 
 	 Segment liabilities  8,414.25  8,437.51  32,846.07  32,931.37  41,260.33  41,368.88 
 	 Net assets  (5,966.38)  (5,942.92)  (29,682.64)  (28,479.74)  (35,649.02)  (34,422.66)
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 Secondary segments (Geographical segments) 
 Particulars  As at March 31, 2022  

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
 As at March 31, 2021  
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

The distribution of Company's sales by geographical market is as 
under: 

Domestic-Manufacturing 
Optical Disc Unit  0.10  0.04 

Solar Photovoltaic  -  3.16 

Total  0.10  3.20 

Note - 31
Earnings Per Share

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year  23,800,049  23,800,049 

Number of equity shares at the end of the year  23,800,049  23,800,049 

Weighted average number of shares at the end of the year (A)  23,800,049  23,800,049 

Net profit after tax available for equity share holders (B)  (1,226.13)  (1,408.84)

Basic Earning per share (Rs.) (Face value- Rs. 10/- each) (C = B / A )  (0.00)  (0.00)

Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) (Face value- Rs. 10/- each) (C = B / A )  (0.00)  (0.00)

Note - 32

During the years 2011-2012 and 2012-2013, the Company had incurred significant losses which had resulted in 
erosion of its net worth. The severe fall in the prices of Solar Photovoltaic cells globally is on account of reduced 
demand which resulted in large inventory at reduced prices, leading to necessity for booking losses and thereby 
depleting working capital. During the year 2011-2012, there was default in the repayment obligations to banks and the 
relevant loan accounts viz. Term Loans, Cash Credit Accounts and devolvement of letters of credit. 

Consequently the Company had received summons/notice from the office of Debt Recovery Tribunal-II, Ahmedabad 
Gujarat in response of the application filed by State Bank of India Baroda Gujarat vide O.A. No. 56/2012 for the 
recovery of their loan under Section 19 of the Recovery of Debts due to Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 1993. 
On 27-Nov-19, the order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed, wherein it has been directed to the Company to clear 
dues amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within a period of 2 months from the date of order. 
The Company is yet to take action against the said order of Debt Recovery Tribunal. The Company received a letter 
dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable properties on 19-Apr-22. No communication has been 
received from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other authority with respect to the same.

Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial creditor with The Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP). The proceeding of the same are ongoing.

The Company had received notices u/s 13(2) of Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of 
Security Interest Act, 2002 from the Cosmos Co-op Bank Ltd and the State Bank of India for recovery of its outstanding 
dues towards various credit facilities extended to the Company from time to time. Further, State Bank of India has taken 
symbolic possession of immovable property of Optical Disc and Solar Photovoltaic Cells Unit under the Securitization & 
Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security (Second) Interest Act, 2002 and in exercise of the powers 
under Section 13(4) of the said Act read with rule 8 of the security Interest (Enforcement) Rules 2002.
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Note - 33

Going Concern

The years 2011-2012 to 2020-2021 have been challenging for the global solar cell manufacturers as well as the Indian 
manufacturers; which on the one hand witnessed steep fall in solar cell prices and on the other hand market flooded 
with products from Chinese and Taiwanese manufacturers which led to the growth of large Chinese manufacturers. 

The Governments in India and other countries are eager to increase the overall share of solar energy by concurrently 
improving infrastructural conditions, especially through solar parks and schemes like ‘development of solar cities’, 
energy efficient green buildings’, generation-based incentives, and subsidies and promotion for solar PV devices that 
are also encouraging PV installation. Recently, in India, it was made mandatory to have domestic content requirement 
for cell and module for crystalline silicon based plant in all the projects granted under JNNSM Phase1, batch II. 
Individual states in India, are also adopting policies and programs to promote the expansion of solar power. Further, 
the Indian Government is considering safeguarding its own industry by some regulation such as anti-dumping for 
Solar Cells. 

In the present situation, the Company is now considering sustainable business model with the various options to 
restructure the capital base including but not limited to approaching the lender banks for arbitraging the partial debt 
with equity, concessions and / or waiver in the interest along with haircuts in certain debt portion with an objective to 
bring it at a serviceable level. Considering the changed and new developments taking place in the Solar Industry and 
as detailed in the management discussion analysis, the financial statements have been prepared on the basis that 
the Company is a going concern.

Note - 34

Contingent Liabilities not provided for 

a)	 The Company for its Optical Disc’s manufacturing unit, has imported various Capital Goods under the Export 
Promotion Capital goods Scheme (EPCG), of the Government of India, through various licenses, at concessional 
rates of Custom Duty on an undertaking to fulfill quantified exports within a period of eight years from the date of 
respective licenses. The custom Duties so saved amounts to Rs.25,38,56,218/- and the corresponding Export 
obligation as on 31st March 21 to be fulfilled is Rs.191,21,59,657/-. If the said Export is not made within the 
stipulated time period; the company is required to pay the said saved Custom Duty together with interest @ 
15% p.a. The Company had filed a reference with hon’ble BIFR petitioning a relief from export obligation of the 
Company.Further the Company has provided in the past bank guarantees in favor of custom authorities amounting 
cumulatively to Rs.508,76,000 towards payment of custom duty on account of failure to satisfy such an export 
obligation. The said Licenses have been surrendered for final closure before the Hon’ble Dy. Commissioner of 
Import - EPCG Monitoring Cell. Further action is pending from the authorities end.

b)	 The Company’s Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit is located in self owned sector specific Special 
Economic Zone. According to the SEZ Act, the units should have positive Net Foreign Exchange Earning 
(NFE),  which shall be calculated as per applicable rules in cumulative blocks of five years, starting from the 
commencement of production. Due to global economic meltdown and steep fall in demand of Company’s 
products led to losses and thereby depleting working capital, the company could not achieve positive Net Foreign 
Exchange in the first block of five years, hence the adjudicating authority imposed a penalty of Rs.2500.00 Lakhs 
under Rule 54 of the SEZ Rules 2006 and directed the administrative to renew the LOA for further period of five 
years. The Company had filed an appeal before the Hon’ble Director General of Foreign Trade, New Delhi for 
waiver of the penalty imposed, but the same was rejected. The same has not been provided in books of accounts 
by the Company.
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(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

Bank guarantees 508.76 508.76 

c)	 Claims against the Company not Acknowledged as Debts as on 31st March 2022 amounting to Rs. Nil.

d) 	 During the year, the Bank account of the Company were freezed by Income Tax Department for the matter relating 
to AY 2009-10. The financial transactions during that period were undertaken using the Directors personal bank 
account.

Note - 35

Application made by Financial Lender at NCLT for CIRP

Application has been filed against the Company by one of the secured financial creditor with The Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate Corporate Insolvency and Resolution 
Process (CIRP). The proceeding of the same are ongoing.

Note - 36

Balance Confirmations

(i) 	 Secured loans in the form of Term Loans, Cash Credits and EEFC Current Account balances from the banks are  
subject to confirmation. 

(ii) 	 Balances of debtors, creditors, loans and advances are subject to confirmation.

Note - 37

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is not required to contribute any sums towards Corporate Social Responsibility as the Company has 
net loss as computed in accordance with Section 198 of Companies Act, 2013.	
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NOTE - 38

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

Particulars As at March 31, 2022
(Amount in USD)

As at March 31, 2021
(Amount in USD)

[1]	� Outstanding Creditors for Purchase of Raw Material, 
Consumables & Spares

 49,952  49,952 

[2]	 Outstanding Debtors  54,234  54,234 

NOTE - 39

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under, to the 
extent the Company has received intimation from the ‘Suppliers’ regarding their status under the Act.

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 
(Amount in Rs. In 

Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 
(Amount in Rs. In 

Lakhs)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year (but within due 
date as per the MSMED Act)

 - Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises  -  - 

 - Interest due on above  -  - 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 
year

 -  - 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the MSMED Act 2006

 -  - 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year

 -  - 

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprises

 -  - 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information collected by the Management. Currently there are no such parties falling under the MSMED Act, 
2006. This has been relied upon by the auditors.	
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NOTE - 40				  

Fair Values				  

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, 
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

(Amount in Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial Assets
Investment 5.33 5.33 5.33 5.33 

Trade Receivables 0.76 0.76 80.35 80.35 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.61 0.61 0.65 0.65 

Bank Balances (Other than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents)

1.26 1.26 5.04 5.04 

Other Financial Assets 530.47 530.47 585.26 585.26 

Total Financial Assets 538.43 538.43 676.63 676.63 

Financial Liabilities
Non-Current borrowings  -  -  -  - 

Current borrowings 7,751.70 7,751.70 7,764.40 7,764.40 

Trade Payables 78.18 78.18 82.70 82.70 

Other Financial Liabilities 33,349.78 33,349.78 33,349.78 33,349.78 

Total Financial Liabilities 41,179.67 41,179.67 41,196.88 41,196.88 
				  

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and trade 
payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

- 	 Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/Borrowings are evaluated by the company based on 
parameters such as interest Rates, specific country risk factors, individual credit worthiness of the customer and 
the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for 
the expected credit losses of these receivables.
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NOTE - 42	

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES	

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main 
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets 
include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.	

The Company is exposed primarily to Market Risk (fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rate), 
Credit Risk and Liquidity risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company 
assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects on the 
financial performance of the Company.	

The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.	

I	 Market Risk	

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other 
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes, loans and borrowings and deposits.	

	 The sensitivity analyses of the above mentioned risk in the following sections relate to the position as at March 
31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.	

	 The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other 
post retirement obligations, provisions and the non-financial assets.	

	 A.	 Interest Rate Risk	

		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values 
of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate 
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of 
fluctuations in the interest rates. 	

		  Exposure to interest rate risk	

		  The Company has borrowed funds from financial institutions and the same are due for repayment. The Lenders 
have called off their advances granted by way of Term Loans, Cash Credit Facilities and other Non fund Based 
Limits, and in light of such senario all the Term Loans and working capital borrowings have been classified as 
Current Maturities of Loans and Credit Facilities from Banks under Other Current Financial Liabilities. Loans are 
carried by the Company at their amortised cost. The Company considers to have no exposure of interest rate risk 
on such borrowings as the Company does not expects any cash outflow on such borrowings.	

		  The Company had accepted deposits and loans and advances from related parties and other parties. 
The same are interest free and repayable on demand by the Company. Therefore the Company has not 
discounted the same and has disclosed the same as current financial liabilities. The Company does not 
expect any exposure to interest rate risk on such borrowings.	

	 B.	 Foreign Currency Sensitivity	

		  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because 
of changes in exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates 
relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign 
currency). The exposure of entity to foreign currency risk is very limited on account of limited transactions in 
foreign currency. The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD 
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.	
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		  The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, 
with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in 
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all 
other currencies is not material.

Particulars Change in Exchange Rate Effect on profit before tax on 
account of Change in USD Rate

31-Mar-22
INR +5% 0.16
INR -5% (0.16)

31-Mar-21
INR +5% 0.16
INR -5% (0.16)

II	 Credit Risk

	 Credit risk is the risk or potential of loss that may occur due to failure of borrower/counterparty to meet the 
obligation on agreed terms and conditions of the financial contract. Credit risk arises from financial assets such 
as cash and cash equivalents, loans, trade receivables and financial guarantees. The company have a credit 
risk management policy in place to limit credit losses due to non-performance of financial counterparties and 
customers. The Company monitor’s its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various levels.

	 The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrying value as at the 
Balance Sheet date.

	 Trade Receivables

	 The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and, as a consequence, believes that its 
trade receivable credit risk exposure is limited. The management of the company regularly evaluate the individual 
customer receivables. This evaluation takes into consideration a customer’s financial condition and credit 
history, as well as current economic conditions. Trade receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. 
Recoveries of trade receivables previously written off are recorded when received. The company regularly track 
the outstanding trade receivables and proper action is taken by the company for collection of overdue trade 
receivables.

	 Cash and cash equivalents and financial guarantees

	 Company’s cash equivalents and short-term available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value. Cash and 
cash equivalents are deposited with financial institutions that management believes are of high credit quality and 
accordingly, minimal credit risk exists. The company mitigates the credit risk of its financial instruments by dealing 
with nationalized banks and reputed private banks with high credit rating.

III	 Liquidity Risk		

	 Liquidity risk refers to the probability of loss arising from a situation where there will not be enough cash and/or 
cash equivalents to meet the needs of depositors and borrowers, sale of illiquid assets will yield less than their 
fair value and illiquid assets will not be sold at the desired time due to lack of buyers. The primary objective of 
liquidity management is to provide for sufficient cash and cash equivalents at all times and any place in the world 
to enable us to meet our payment obligations. Currently the company is facing liquidity crises on account of 
business slowdown, huge borrowings and other fixed costs and huge broght forward losses.
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	 The below table is based on the earliest date on which the company required to pay.

Particulars FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Long Term 
Borrowings

Short Term 
Borrowings

Trade 
Payables

Other Financial 
Liabilities

Total Financial 
Liabilities

Year ended March 31, 2022
< 1 Year  -  7,751.70  78.18  33,349.78  41,179.67 

1-3 Year  -  -  -  -  - 

> 3 Year  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  7,751.70  78.18  33,349.78  41,179.67 
Year ended March 31, 2021
< 1 Year  -  7,764.40  82.70  33,349.78  41,196.88 

1-3 Year  -  -  -  -  - 

> 3 Year  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  7,764.40  82.70  33,349.78  41,196.88 

NOTE - 43

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium 
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital 
management is to maximise the shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions 
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital, issue new shares for cash, repay debt, put in place 
new debt facilities or undertake other such restructuring activities as appropriate.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to 
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital 
structure requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 
31, 2021.

NOTE - 44

Impact of Covid-19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing siginficate distrurbance 
and slowdown of economic activity. The company is in the business of manufacturing Optical Disc and Solar 
Photovoltaic Cells which fall under non-essential items during the pandemic situation. The Company has 
considered the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its operations, liquidity position and recoverability of 
its asset balances at 31st March, 2022 based on the internal and external information upto the date of approval of 
these financial results. The impact of COVID-19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of 
these financial results and management will continue to monitor any material changes arising due to the impact 
of this pandemic on financial and operational performance of the Company and take necessary measures to 
address the situation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

NOTE - 45

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors on June 
29, 2022.

NOTE - 46

Figures of previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.

In terms of our report attached
For S.S. SINGHVI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 114980W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED

CA Ankit B. Rathi
Partner
Membership Number: 164582 

Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00043059

Uday Thoria
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Surat
Date: May 25, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE I

ANNEXURE TO STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

I. Sl. 
No.

Particulars Audited Figures 
(as reported 

before adjusting 
for qualifications)

Adjusted Figures 
(audited figures 
after adjusting 

for qualifications)
1. Total Income 38.27 38.27
2. Total Expenditure including taxes (1277.14) 11044.80
3. Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (1238.86) (11006.51)
4. Earnings Per Share (EPS) (5.15) (46.25)
5. Total Assets 5611.54 5611.54
6. Total Liabilities 41260.33 51027.98
7. Net Worth (35648.79) (45416.44)
8. Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate by the 

management)
Nil Nil

II. Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):
a.	 Details of Audit Qualification:

b.	 Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion / Disclaimer of Opinion / Adverse 
Opinion 

c.	 Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since how long 
continuing 

d.	 For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, 
Management’s Views: 

e.	 For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:  N.A

 	 (i)	 Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: 

	 (ii)	 If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

	 (iii)	 Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

As Per Annexure A

III. Signatories:

Hitesh Shah – Whole Time Director

Uday Thoria – CFO

Navin Nandu  - Audit Committee Chairman

CA Ankit Rathi - Statutory Auditor
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE TO STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Sr. 
No. Details of Audit Qualification Type of Audit 

Qualification
Frequency of 
Qualification

For Audit Qualifications 
where the impact is 

quantified by the auditor, 
management’s view

1 The Company’s financial facilities/arrangements including Term 
Loans, Working Capital Facilities and Non Fund Based Credit 
Facilities have expired and the accounts with the Banks have 
turned into Non Performing Assets.

The Company is unable to renegotiate, restructure or obtain 
replacement of financing arrangements and the banks have 
initiated legal proceedings for the recovery from the Company 
u/s. 19 of the Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT), u/s. 13(2) of 
the Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets & 
Enforcement of Security (Second) Interest (SARFAESI) Act, 
2002. In addition to this, the Company has been continuously 
incurring substantial losses since past few years and as on 
March 31, 2022, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its 
current assets by Rs. 40,773.08 lakhs. Further, the net-worth of 
the Company has fully eroded and the Company had filed for 
registration u/s. 15(1) of the erstwhile Sick Industrial Companies 
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985, before the erstwhile Hon’ble 
Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction.

All the above events indicate a material uncertainty that casts a 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets and 
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The 
financial results do not disclose the fact that the fundamental 
accounting assumption of going concern has not been followed.

Qualified Repeat Considering the changes and 
new developments taking 
place in the solar industry, 
the management is optimistic 
about the better opportunity 
and turnaround of the 
Company.

2 The Company has not provided for interest on banking credit 
facilities amounting to Rs. 2547.97 lakhs, for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2022 and Rs. 9767.65 lakhs, for the year ended March 
31, 2022.  Had the same been accounted for, the net loss (after 
tax) for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 would have been 
increased by Rs. 2547.97 lakhs and for the year ended March 
31, 2022, would have been increased by Rs. 9767.65 lakhs.

Further, this interest on banking credit facility has not been 
provided in the books of accounts since financial year 2014-15 
and aggregate amount of which is subject to confirmation and 
reconciliation from banks.

Qualified Repeat The proceedings of NCLT are 
ongoing for the Company.

3 The order of Debt Recovery Tribunal was passed on 27-Nov-
2019, wherein it was directed to the Company to clear dues 
amounting to Rs. 13,971.99 lakhs and interest and penalty within 
a period of 2 months from the date of order, failing which the 
Bank will be entitled to sell the hypothecated assets, mortgage 
properties and other personal movable and immovable properties 
of the Company and guarantors. The Company received a letter 
dated 25-Feb-2022, for e-auction of movable and immovable 
properties on 19-Apr-22. No communication has been received 
from Debt Recovery Tribunal or any other authority with respect 
to the success or failure of the process. Also, no action has 
been taken by the Company till the date of this report and 
consequential impact is unascertainable.

Application has been filed against the Company by one of the 
secured financial lender with The Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench on June 18, 2020, to initiate 
Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process (CIRP), which is 
pending for final hearing at NCLT. The consequential impact is 
unascertainable.

Qualified Repeat The proceedings of NCLT are 
ongoing for the Company.
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Sr. 
No. Details of Audit Qualification Type of Audit 

Qualification
Frequency of 
Qualification

For Audit Qualifications 
where the impact is 

quantified by the auditor, 
management’s view

4 The Company has not provided for impairment or diminishing 
value of its assets as per ‘Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 
36’ as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The effect of such Impairment or diminishing value has not been 
quantified by the management and hence the impact of the same 
is not ascertainable.

Qualified Repeat The management has a 
policy to maintain the assets 
and keep them in working 
condition, so that its value does 
not get affected in long run. 
The management is optimistic 
about realizing the value of its 
Assets / Investments nearest to 
its carrying amount, and there 
is no further diminution in the 
value of its assets/investment 
other than depreciation / 
amortization.

5 The financial statements have been prepared with regards to 
non-receipt of confirmation of balances from few of the debtors, 
Unsecured Loans, loans & advances, investments, banks, sundry 
creditors and other liabilities. Pending receipt of confirmation of 
these balances and consequential reconciliations / adjustments, 
if any, the resultant impact on the financial statements is not 
ascertainable.

Qualified Repeat The Company has policy of 
confirming balances at least 
once in a year. However on 
account of non-receipt of 
adequate and timely response, 
the same is still in process.

6 The financial statements are prepared considering non-
ascertainment of complete particulars of dues to Micro, Small 
and Medium enterprises, if any under MSMED Act, 2006, and 
provisions towards interest, if any, is not ascertained at this stage 
which is not in conformity with 	‘Ind AS 37-Provision, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.

Qualified Repeat In view of the management, the 
impact will not be material.

7 The Company for its Optical Disc’s manufacturing unit, had 
imported various Capital Goods under the Export Promotion 
Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG), of the Government of India, 
through various licenses, at concessional rates of Custom Duty on 
an undertaking to fulfill quantified exports within a period of eight 
years from the date of respective licenses. The Custom Duties 
so saved amounted to Rs. 2,538.56 lakhs and the corresponding 
Export obligation to be fulfilled amounted to Rs. 20,308.50 lakhs, 
however as on March 31, 2022, the Export obligation yet to be 
fulfilled amounted to Rs. 19,121.60 lakhs. The stipulated period 
of 8 years to fulfill Export obligation has already expired and the 
Company is required to pay the said saved Custom Duty together 
with interest @ 15% p.a. but the same has not been provided 
in books of accounts by the Company and the final liability is 
presently unascertainable.

Qualified Repeat The Company till date has not 
received any order quantifying 
the liability. In fact, the 
management has suo motto 
approached the appropriate 
authorities surrendered the 
licenses and have lodged the 
counter claim for extinguishing 
their liability under the license 
in view of relevant zero 
duty notification. Hence the 
management is optimistic of 
positive outcome.

8 The Company’s Solar Photovoltaic Cells manufacturing unit 
which is located in self-owned sector specific Special Economic 
Zone (SEZ). According to the SEZ Rules 2006, the units should 
have positive Net Foreign Exchange Earning (NFE), which 
shall be calculated as per applicable rules in cumulative blocks 
of five years, starting from the commencement of production. 
The company could not achieve positive Net Foreign Exchange 
Earnings in the first block of five years, hence the Director 
General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) has imposed a penalty of 
Rs. 2,500.00 lakhs under Rule 54 of the SEZ Rules 2006, and 
the same has not been provided in books of accounts by the 
Company.

Qualified Repeat The Company had filed an 
appeal against the Order of 
honorable DGFT, New Delhi 
with the Commerce Secretary, 
Ministry of  Corporate Affairs 
and hearings have been 
completed. After hearing the 
submissions made on behalf 
of the Company, Appellant 
Committee has reserved its 
order till date.
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Sr. 
No. Details of Audit Qualification Type of Audit 

Qualification
Frequency of 
Qualification

For Audit Qualifications 
where the impact is 

quantified by the auditor, 
management’s view

9 Amounts aggregating to Rs. 37.91 lakhs disclosed under Trade 
Payables, in respect of purchase of traded goods, raw mate	
rials, spares and consumables from entities outside India, 
which are outstanding for more than 6 months, which is not in 
compliance with the Regulations / Guidelines of the Foreign 
Exchange Management Act, 1999. Any penalties that may be 
levied by the Reserve Bank of India and/or any changes to the 
disclosure of the amounts in the financial results in this regard 
are not presently ascertainable.

Qualified Repeat The amount is towards 
material purchased for trading 
purpose and would be paid as 
and when demanded by the 
supplier.

10 In respect of deposits accepted by the company before the 
commencement of this Act, within the meaning of section 74 & 75 
of the Act and the Rules framed there under, the principal amount 
of such deposits and interest due thereon remained unpaid 
even after expiry of one year from such commencement and 
the Company has not filed a statement within a period of three 
months from such commencement or from the date on which 
such payments, are due, with the Registrar details as prescribed 
u/s.74(1)(a). Further no application has been made for extension 
of time with the National Company Law Tribunal u/s.74(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in this regards.

Qualified Repeat The non-compliances are 
unintentional and in absence 
of Whole time Company 
Secretary earlier, the 
compliances were missed out 
inadvertently.

11 The Company Secretary had resigned from the Company and 
the Company has not appointed any other person and the 
position stands vacant till the date of our report and therefore the 
company is not in compliance with Regulation 6 of LODR which 
requires Company Secretary to be appointed as Compliance 
Officer.

Qualified Repeat The Company is a sick unit 
and also in NCLT. It is difficult 
for the company to appoint 
Company Secretary.

12 Overdue receivables aggregating to Rs. 41.16 lakhs as on 
March 31, 2022, towards sales of goods included under “Trade 
Receivables” owed to the Company by its Foreign Customers 
due for more than 6 months as on March 31, 2022. These 
balances have not been settled till March 31, 2022. The 
Company is yet to make an application to the authorized dealer 
or Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for overdue receivable balances 
beyond the prescribed time limits in accordance with Foreign 
Exchange Management Act (FEMA). Any penalties that may be 
levied by RBI are presently not known and not given effect to in 
the financial statements.

Also, of the total amount receivable, as disclosed in the financial 
results, amounting to Rs. 65.18 lakhs, provisions for doubtful 
debts have been created at Rs. 64.42 lakhs. The allowance for 
bad and doubtful debts have been made based on the estimates 
and best possible judgement of the Company. 

The Expected Credit Loss Method as required under Ind AS 
109, has not been followed while making provision for doubtful 
debts. Based on the above, we are unable to comment over 
the realisability of trade receivables, provisioning and its overall 
impact on the financial results.

Qualified Repeat The Company has made an 
application and initiated the 
process for compliance as per 
RBI guidelines.
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Sr. 
No. Details of Audit Qualification Type of Audit 

Qualification
Frequency of 
Qualification

For Audit Qualifications 
where the impact is 

quantified by the auditor, 
management’s view

13 The Company has borrowings, classified under Non-Current 
Financial Liabilities, which are borrowed from various related 
parties and other lenders, the repayment terms of which have 
not been agreed between the Company and the lenders. The 
Company has not fair valued such sums received in accordance 
with the provisions of ‘Ind AS – 109 – Financial Instrument’ and 
‘Ind AS – 113 – Fair Value Measurement’. The effect of such 
treatment has not been quantified by the management and 
hence the same is not ascertainable.

Qualified Repeat The Company considers the 
same to be repayable on 
demand and hence no fair 
value is required to be done. 
Also, loans and borrowings are 
long outstanding and with no 
repayment terms.

14 The Company did not obtain actuarial report and had not made any 
provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment for the year. The impact 
of such non-provisioning of liability is unascertainable on the results 
and also, relevant disclosures as required under Ind AS – 15, Employees 
Benefit have not been given.

Qualified Repeat The Company did not obtain such 
valuation report as the company 
is a sick unit and majority of the 
employees have left the company. 
However the company has not 
written off the complete amount 
as it expects the same to be 
payable to the employees.

15 The Company has on the basis of their internal evaluation, 
valued inventories at Rs.16.67 lakhs. In the absence of valuation 
report or other documentary evidence confirming net realizable 
value of inventories, we are unable to comment on realization 
value of the inventories.

Qualified Repeat The inventories have become 
obsolete, old, expired and 
unusable. Last year. The 
management has written off 
the excess amount of inventory 
and has kept the inventory at 
realizable value.

16 The Company has Gratuity liability payable to the employees 
amounting to Rs. 32.93 lakhs, which are long outstanding. No 
interest has been provided by the Company over the same during the 
preparation of financial statements. The effect of such treatment has 
not been quantified by the management and hence the same is not 
ascertainable.

Qualified First Time Most of the employees have left 
the Company, still the Company 
believes that claim may arise for 
such employees. However on 
account of losses of the Company 
and the Company being sick, does 
not intend to provide for interest.

17 The system of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting 
with regard to the Company were not made available to us to 
enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate 
internal financial control over financial reporting and whether 
such internal financial controls were operating effectively under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Qualified Repeat The management has internal 
control process in place. 
However, no risk control 
matrix has been documented. 
The management is planning 
to prepare the same at the 
earliest.

18 The Company has TDS demand outstanding amounting to Rs. 2.96 
lakhs, pertaining to the previous financial years. The Company is in 
the process of ascertaining the liabilities and rectifying such returns, 
wherever required. No adjustment has been made for the said sums in 
the financial statements.

Qualified Repeat The company is in the process 
of filing rectification returns and 
or make payments wherever 
required, if any.
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EURO MULTIVISION LIMITED
CIN: L32300MH2004PLC145995

Registered Office: F/12, Ground Floor, Sangam Arcade, Vallabhbhai Road,
Vile Parle (West), Mumbai 400 056

Phone: +91-22-4036 4036; Fax: +91-22-4036 4037;
E-mail: info@euromultivision.com; Website: www.euromultivision.com

FOR KIND ATTENTION OF SHAREHOLDERS
Dear Shareholders,

As per the provisions of Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management & Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Company needs to update its ‘Register of Members’ to incorporate certain new details, as required 
under the said provisions. Further, as per the “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” initiated by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011, the Company proposes to send all the 
notices, documents including Annual Report in electronic form to its members.

We, therefore request you to furnish the following details for updation of Register of Members and enable the Company 
to send all communications to you through electronic mode:

Registered Folio/DP ID & Client ID

Name of the Shareholder(s)

Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s Name

Address (Registered Office Address in case the Member is a 
Body Corporate)

E-mail ID

PAN or CIN (in case of Body Corporate)

UIN (Aadhaar Number)

Occupation

Residential Status

Nationality

In case member is a minor, name of the guardian

Date of birth of the Member

Note: Members holding shares in DEMAT mode may furnish these details to their respective depositories.

Place: ____________	�  _________________________

Date: _____________� Signature of the Member

Kindly submit the above details duly filled in and signed at the appropriate place to the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company viz. “Link Intime India Private Ltd; C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, 
Mumbai 400 083.

The E-mail ID provided shall be updated subject to successful verification of your signature. The members may 
receive Annual Reports in physical form free of cost by post by making request for the same.

Thanking you,
For Euro Multivision Limited

Hitesh Shah
Chairman & Whole Time Director
DIN: 00043059

Date: 
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